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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their Strategic Report for the year' ended 31 December 2022 for E.ON UK Holding
Company Limited ("the Company").

Fair review of the business
The Company continued to act as a holding company and to service the funding requirements of companies
within the E.ON SE group. The directors believe these activities will continue in the current year.

At 31 December 2022, the Company had net assets of £1,960 million (2021: net assets of £1,928 million).
Further information regarding the financial results of the Company at the year end and future developments are
- provided in the Directors’ Report.

The Company made a profit before tax during the year of £79 million (2021: profit before tax of £384 million),
due primarily to the receipt of a £200 million dividend from E.ON UK plc (2021: £500 million).

Key performance indicators (‘KPIs’)
Net interest payable: ‘ :
The Company had net interest payable for the year of £125 million (2021: £117 million).

Other than the KPI stated above, the directors do not believe there are any further relevant KPIs that are not
already disclosed within these financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties :
The management of the business and the execution of the Company's strategy are subject to a number of risks.

The key business risks and uncertainties affecting the Company are considered to relate to fluctuations in
exchange rates and interest rates on loans to and from other companies within the E.ON SE group. These risks
are managed through cross currency swap agreements for all exposure on non-sterling denominated loans and a
mixture of fixed and floating interest rates on the loans. Due to the fully hedged position of the Company, the
risk associated with the significant volatility is deemed to be low.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Statement made under Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 ('Act')

The directors acknowledge and understand their duties under the Act and in particular their duty to act in a way
which they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit
of its members as a whole and, in doing so, to have regard (amongst other matters) to:

(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

(b) the interests of the Company’s employees;

(c) the need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

(d) the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment;

(e) the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
(f) the need to act fairly between members of the Company.

The directors regard a well-governed business as essential for the successful delivery of its principal activity.
The Company is an indirect subsidiary of E.ON SE, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and
which is head-quartered in Essen, Germany. The two main operating divisions of the E.ON SE group are Energy
Networks and Customer Solutions.

The Company forms part of the Customer Solutions division of E.ON SE. The board of management of E.ON
SE manages the group’s operations on a global and divisional basis. The E.ON SE group has in place detailed
policies and governance frameworks within which its subsidiaries must operate, including the Company. From
the perspective of the directors, due to the E.ON SE group governance structure, the matters that they are
responsible for considering under section 172(1) of the Act are also considered to an appropriate extent by the
E.ON SE group management board in relation both to the E.ON SE group and the Company. The directors
consider the factors detailed under section 172(1) of the Act are within the framework of the strategy set by the
board of management of E.ON SE.

The Company's directors believe that, to the extent necessary for an understanding of the development,
performance and position of the Company, the requirements of section 172(1) are discussed within the E.ON SE
Annual Report 2022 on pages 14 to 188, which does not form part of this report.

Approved by the board on 20 September 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

[=% o

C Borger
Director

E.ON UK Holding Company Limited
Registration No: 01313782
Westwood Way

Westwood Business Park

Coventry

England

CV4 8LG
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their Directors' Report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Directors of the Company
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing these financial statements were as
follows:

R J Brooks (appointed 25 July 2022)

D C A Baumber (resigned 31 March 2023)
M D Lewis (resigned 31 May 2023)

C Barr (resigned 31 July 2023)

C S Norbury (appointed 31 May 2023)
C Borger (appointed 31 July 2023)

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a holding company and to service the funding requirements of
companies within the E.ON SE group. The funding is sourced through loans from companies within the E.ON
SE group. ’

Results and dividends

The Company’s profit for the financial year is £136 million (2021: profit of £399 million) due primarily to the
receipt of a dividend. An interim dividend of £100 million was paid during the year (2021: £nil). The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2021: £nil).

Financial risk management

Objectives and policies

The Company, in common with other E.ON SE subsidiaries, must comply with the E.ON SE group's finance
guidelines that set out the principles and framework for managing group-wide finances. The Company also
utilises the E.ON UK plc operational treasury team which services the treasury requirements of its business.
Further information on the E.ON SE group’s policies and procedures is available in the financial statements of
the E.ON SE group.

E.ON SE has a central department that is responsible for financing and treasury strategy, policies and
procedures throughout the E.ON SE group. Major strategic financing and corporate finance actions are planned
and executed by the corporate finance team at E.ON SE. There is also a treasury team which co-ordinates
currency and interest risk management as well as cash management for the whole E.ON SE group.

The Company operates its own specific treasury procedures within the overall E.ON SE treasury framework.
The E.ON UK plc treasury team liaise closely with the Company to ensure that liquidity and risk management
needs are met within the requirement of the E.ON SE group’s policies and procedures.

The Company’s approach to financial risk management, including its use of hedging instruments, is explained in
note 16 to these financial statements.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk
Foreign exchange risk management

The Company operates within the framework of the E.ON group's guidelines for foreign exchange risk
management. The Company's policy is to hedge all contractually committed operational exposures, as soon as
the commitment arises. The Company will also partly hedge less certain cash flows when appropriate. The
Company determines the hedging of translation exposures (the value of foreign currency liabilities and assets in
the balance sheet) on a case by case basis in consultation with the E.ON Treasury department.

Interest rate risk management

The Company operates within the E.ON SE framework for interest rate risk management. The Company has a
number of funding arrangements and is exposed to movements in interest rates. These interest rate exposures are
managed primarily through the use of floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk management

The Company is subject to the E.ON group's finance policy which sets a credit limit for every financial
institution with which the Company does a significant amount of business. The creditworthiness of the
institutions with which the Company does significant business is established by the ratings they receive from
external rating agencies including Moody's and Standard & Poor's. In addition, other counterparty credit risk is
subject to the E.ON group's credit risk management policy supported by individual business unit policies to
establish internal ratings for limit setting. Credit risk assessment involves quantitative and qualitative criteria
including ratings by independent rating agencies where these are available.

Liquidity and cash flow risks

The Company has sufficient committed borrowing facilities to meet planned liquidity needs with headroom,
through facilities provided by E.ON SE. The Company also has a bank overdraft facility to support daily
liquidity management. The level of operating cash is affected by the performance of the business, market prices
and margins amongst other things.

Political donations
" No political donations were made during the year (2021: £nil).

Future developments
The directors believe that the principal activities of the Company will continue in the current year.

Going concern

The directors have considered the Company’s principal risks and uncertainties and concluded that the Company
will have sufficient funds available under its current resources and committed facilities to continue to meet its
liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date these financial statements are approved. These
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which the directors believe to be
appropriate for the following reasons:

» The Company is part of the E.ON SE group, one of Europe's largest energy groups, and is the holding
company (either directly or indirectly) for companies in the UK that perform key business activities including
the buying and selling of energy and the provision of energy related services to residential and business
consumers.

* The Company is a member of the UK cash pooling facility managed by E.ON SE, whereby the cash balance of
the Company is swept into an inter-company bank account on a daily basis. To the extent that working capital
requirements arise, these are met through access to the cash pooling facility. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, the Company had a net receivable balance to that facility.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

« The Company has prepared a base case financial forecast covering the E.ON UK group companies (“the UK
Group”), including the Company for at least 12 months from the date these financial statements are approved.
These forecasts indicate that the UK Group will have sufficient funds available under its current resources and
committed facilities to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due.

» The Company has also prepared a range of potential scenarios and in certain severe but plausible downside
scenarios, the UK Group needs additional support from the ultimate holding company, E.ON SE to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors consider that in these circumstances, E.ON SE would have the
ability and intention to provide funds such that the UK Group will continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge
that there can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Consequently, the directors of the Company are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to
continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future being a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of these financial statements and therefore have prepared these financial statements on
the going concern basis.

Directors' indemnities

The Company maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers. This is a qualifying third party
indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. This insurance cover was in force during the
year and is still in force at the date of approving these financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information. Each
director confirms that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditors are
unaware.

Reappointment of auditors
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continue in office.

Approved by the board on 20 September 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

C Borger
Director

E.ON UK Holding Company Limited
Registration No: 01313782
Westwood Way

Westwood Business Park

Coventry

England

CV4 8LG
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and these financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, they
have elected to prepare these financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law, the directors must not approve these financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in these financial statements;

+ assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and

* use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that these financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

' Approved by the board on 20 September 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

C Borger
Director
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of E.ON UK Holding Coinpany Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of E.ON UK Holding Company Limited ("the Company") for the year
ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

« give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom (UK) accounting standards, including FRS
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework;, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could
have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

».we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate; ’

* we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions
are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of E.ON UK Holding Company Limited
(continued)

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to ﬁ'dud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the E.ON
Group’s policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud that apply to this group company as well as
enquiring whether the directors have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of
controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.
On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because there are no revenue
transactions. We did not identify any additional fraud risks. .

We performed procedures including identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk
criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included those posted to
unusual accounts.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the
directors (as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors the policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

The company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation
legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures
on the related financial statement items.

This company, as a holding company, is not subject to other laws and regulations where the consequences of
non-compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regula.tior.l

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of E.ON UK Holding Company Limited
(continued)

Strategic report and directors' report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

» we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

* in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

« in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in these respects.
Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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E.ON UK Hol&ing Company Limited

Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of E.ON UK Holding Company Limited
(continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Anna Barrell (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One, Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham

B4 6GH

20" September 2023
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note .. £fm £m
Administrative expenses excluding impairments (1) 3)
(Impairments)/reversal of impairments (3) 3
Administrative expenses “) -
Other operating income 8 1
Operating profit 3 4 : 1
. 7
Income from shares in group undertakings 200 500
Interest receivable and similar income 5 32 13
Interest payable and similar expenses 6 (157) (130)
Profit before tax 79 384
Tax on profit 8 57 . 15
Profit for the financial year 136 399

The notes on pages 15 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

£m £m

Profit for the year : 136 399

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Cash flow hedge - (23)

Exchange movement on debt in cash flow hedges ' &) 25
Income tax effect 1 €))

@ 1

Total comprehensive income for the year 132 400

The notes on pages 15 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

(Registration number: 01313782)
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2022

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 9 5,300 5,300
" Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year 10 972 911
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 11 758 547
Cash at bank and in hand 1 -
1,731 1,458
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 12 (603) (374)
Net current assets ) 1,128 1,084
Total assets less current liabilities 6,428 6,384
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 13 (4,468) (4,456)
Net assets ' 1,960 1,928
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 911 911
Other reserves : - 4
Profit and loss account 1 ,049 1,013
Shareholders' funds 1,960 ’ 1,928

The financial statements on pages 11 to 38 were approved by the board of directors on 20 September 2023 and
signed on its behalf by:

C Borger
Director

E.ON UK Holding Company Limited
Registration No: 01313782

The notes on pages 15 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2022
Profit for the year

Exchange movement on debt in
cash flow hedges

Income tax effect

Total comprehensive
(expense)/income

Dividends
At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2021
Profit for the year
Cash flow hedge

Exchange movement on debt in
cash flow hedges

Income tax effect
Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2021

Cash flow
Called up hedging Profit and Shareholders'
share capital reserve loss account funds
Note £m £m £m £m
911 4 1,013 1,928
- - 136 136
17 - (%) - )
- 1 - !
- “) 136 132
15 - - (100) (100)
911 - 1,049 1,960
Cash flow
Called up hedging Profit and Shareholders'
share capital reserve loss account funds
Note £m £m £m £m
911 3 614 1,528
- - 399 399
17 PR (23) - (23)
- 25 - 25
- &) - M
- 1 399 400
911 4 1,013 1,928

The notes on pages 15 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

1 General information
The Company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated and domiciled in United Kingdom.

The Company acts as a holding company and services the funding requirements of UK companies within the
E.ON SE group.

The address of its registered office is:
Westwood Way

Westwood Business Park

Coventry

England

CV4 8LG

2 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Company has prepared these financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (‘FRS 101'). These financial statements have been prepared under the going
concern basis, historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivative financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at fair value, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies using FRS 101. The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout
the year, are set out below.

Going concern

The directors have considered the Company’s principal risks and uncertainties and concluded that the Company
will have sufficient funds available under its current resources and committed facilities to continue to meet its
liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date these financial statements are approved. These
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which the directors believe to be
appropriate for the following reasons:

* The Company is part of the E.ON SE group, one of Europe's largest energy groups, and is the holding
company (either directly or indirectly) for companies in the UK that perform key business activities including
the buying and selling of energy and the provision of energy related services to residential and business
consumers.

* The Company is a member of the UK cash pooling facility managed by E.ON SE, whereby the cash balance of
the Company is swept into an inter-company bank account on a daily basis. To the extent that working capital
requirements arise, these are met through access to the cash pooling facility. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, the Company had a net payable balance to that facility.

* The Company has prepared a base case financial forecast covering the E.ON UK group companies (“the UK
Group”), including the Company for at least 12 months from the date these financial statements are approved.
These forecasts indicate that the UK Group will have sufficient funds available under its current resources and
committed facilities to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

« The Company has also prepared a range of potential scenarios and in certain severe but plausible downside
scenarios, the UK Group needs additional support from the ultimate holding company, E.ON SE to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors consider that in these circumstances, E.ON SE would have the
ability and intention to provide funds such that the UK Group will continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge
that there can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so. :

Consequently, the directors of the Company are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to
continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future being a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of these financial statements and therefore have prepared these financial statements on
the going concern basis.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of disclosure exemptions
In these financial statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemptions available under FRS 101 in
respect of the following disclosures:

* The following paragraphs of IAS 1 - ‘Presentation of financial statements’ (removmg the requirement to
present):

- 10(d) (statement of cash flows);
- 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS);
- 111 (cash flow statement information); and
- 134-136 (capital management disclosures)
» The comparative information requirements of Paragraph 38 of IAS 1 - ‘Presentation of financial statements’
(comparative information requirements in respect of):

- paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1
(reconciliation of number of shares at the beginning and end of the period)

- paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’
(reconciliations between the carrying amount at the béginning and end of the period)

- paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’
(reconciliations between the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period)

- paragraph 134 (d-f) of IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’
(information about estimates used to measure recoverable amounts)

+ The requirements of IAS 7 - ‘Statement of cash flows’ and related notes.
» The requirements of Paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 - ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors’ (requirement for the disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that

has been issued but is not yet effective).

*+ The requirements of Paragraph 17 of IAS 24 - ‘Related party disclosures’ (key management compensation).
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

+ The requirements of Paragraph 18A of 1AS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ (to disclose related party
transactions entered into between two or more members of a group).

* The requirements of IFRS 7 - ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’

+ The requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 - ‘Fair value measurement’ (disclosure of valuation
techniques and inputs used for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities).

* The requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a) to
(c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 - ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (disaggregation of revenue,
significant changes in contract assets and liabilities, details on transaction price allocation, timing of the
satisfaction of performance obligations and significant judgements made in the application of IFRS 15).

* The requirements of Paragraph 52 [lessee], the second sentence of Paragraph 89, and Paragraphs 90, 91 and
93 [lessor] of IFRS 16 - ‘Leases’ (lessee disclosures and lessor disclosures in relation to finance leases and
lease income on operating leases).

* The requirements of paragraph 58 of IFRS 16 (maturity analysis), provided that the disclosure of details of
indebtedness required by paragraph 61(1) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations is presented separately for lease
liabilities and other liabilities, and in total.

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value: certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivatives) measured at
fair value, investment property and liabilities for cash-settled share-based payments. Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale are stated at-the lower of previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Exemption from preparing group accounts

The Company is exempt by virtue of s401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group
financial statements. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual
undertaking and not about its group.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking, E.ON SE, includes the Company in its consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements of E.ON SE are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and are available to the public and may be obtained from Briisseler Platz 1,
45131 Essen, Germany.

Changes in accounting policy
None of the following standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time from 1 January
2022 have had a material effect on these financial statements:

* Amendments to IAS16, IAS 37 and IFRS 3; and
* Minor amendments to I[FRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. These judgements and estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge. of the relevant facts and circumstances, having regard to prior experience, but
actual results may differ from the amounts included in these financial statements.

There are no critical judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty in relation to these financial
statements.

Finance income and costs policy

Interest payable and similar expenses include interest payable, finance expense on shares classified as liabilities
and finance expense on lease liabilities recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method,
unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the profit and
loss account (see foreign currency accounting policy). Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Other interest receivable and similar income includes interest receivable on funds invested and interest income
-on lease receivables.

Interest receivable and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the entity’s right to receive
payments is established. )

Foreign currency transactions and balances

These financial statements are presented in Great British Pounds ("GBP") which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information is presented in GBP and has been rounded to the nearest million unless
otherwise stated.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date.

All exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account except when deferred in other
comprehensive income ("OCI") as qualifying cash flow hedges.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

The Company uses a range of derivative instruments, including foreign exchange contracts. Derivative
instruments are used for hedging purposes to manage risk.

Derivative instruments accounted for as Fair Value to the Profit and Loss are recorded as either assets or
liabilities in the balance sheet and measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise. Own use forward
contracts, where the contract results in physical delivery of the commodity, are accounted for on an accruals
basis.

Derivatives embedded within other financial instruments or host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are
not carried at fair value in their entirety.

See the directors' report and notes 16 and 17 for further details of the fair values of the financial instruments.

Tax .
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that
a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as OCI is recognised directly in OCI.

The current income tax credit is calculated on the ‘basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax credits in the
Company. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than
not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits include cash at bank and in hand.

Investments
As required by IAS 27, the fixed asset investment related to investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated

at historical cost less provision for any diminution in value.

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment.

Listed and other investments are classified at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses on available for sale
investments are recognised in equity until the investment is disposed of.
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the
profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Inter-company balances

Inter-company payable and receivable trading balances within the E.ON SE group are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. These balances are consolidated at each period end into a
single balance with each group company. These transactions are net settled. As a result, the directors consider it
appropriate to present inter-company balances within these financial statements on a net basis. Formal loan
balances are settled and presented gross.

Inter-company receivable balances are provided for in line with the impairment methodology as set out below.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet, when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company has one type of financial asset that is subject to the expected credit loss model:

» amounts owed by group undertakings

The expected future credit loss is calculated by multiplying the probability of default by the carrying amount of
the financial asset (exposure at default) and the expected loss ratio (loss given default). The probability of
default describes the probability that a debtor will not meet their payment obligations and the receivable will
therefore default. Exposure at default is the amount of the financial asset allocated to the Company at the time of
default. Loss given default is the expectation of what portion of a financial asset is no longer recoverable in the
event of default and is determined taking into account guarantees, other loan collateral and, if appropriate,
insolvency ratios.

Amount owed by group undertakings

For amounts owed by group undertakings, the Company first determines the 12 month expected credit loss, with
the lifetime expected credit loss being recognised in the event of a significant increase in default risk. This is
assumed if the internally determined counterparty risk has been downgraded at least three risk levels on the ten
level counterparty risk scale since initial recognition. If external or internal rating information is available, the
expected credit loss is determined on the basis of this data. If no rating information is available, the Company
determines default ratios on the basis of historical default rates, taking into account forward-looking information
on economic developments. The estimates and assumptions used to determine the level of expected credit losses
are reviewed periodically to determine if there is a significant increase in default risk. The carrying value of
amounts owed by group undertakings is disclosed within note 11.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses a range of derivatives to hedge exposures to financial risks, such as foreign exchange,
arising in the normal course of business. The use of derivative financial instruments is governed by the
Company's risk management policies which are approved by the Company's directors, for which further detail is
available within note 17.

All derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative is entered into and are
re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Derivative assets and derivative liabilities are offset and
presented on a net basis only when both a legal right of off-set exists and the intention to net settle the derivative
contracts is present.

Derivatives embedded within other financial instruments or host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are
not carried at fair value in their entirety.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the profit and
loss account as they arise.

Hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Company designates its derivatives as hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

The E.ON UK plc treasury or E.ON SE group finance teams document at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. Also documented are assessments, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair value of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes is disclosed in note 17. Movements

on the hedging reserve in OCI are shown on page 14. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a
non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Amounts accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging
variable rate borrowings is recognised in the profit and loss account.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the profit and loss account. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to
the profit and loss account.

Exceptional items
All one-off items that are considered exceptional by their scale and nature are disclosed separately within the
profit and loss account and any related notes.

3 Operating profit
Arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2022 2021
Note £m £m

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of financial assets 11 3 3)
Foreign exchange gains 1 -
Derivative (gains)/losses (6) 1

The impairment for amounts owed to group undertakings ‘recognised during the year was £3 million (2021:
impairment reversal of £3 million).

The derivative gain for the year includes £4 million release from OCI following the termination of the cashflow

hedge.

4 Auditors' remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration of £50,000 (2021: £35,000) for the audit of these financial statements was borne by
E.ON UK plc and recharged to the Company.

S Interest receivable and similar income

2022 2021

£m £m

Interest receivable from group undertakings 32 7
Interest rate swaps - gains - 6
32 13
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6 Interest payable and similar expenses

2022 2021

£m £m

Interest payable to group undertakings 156 122
Interest rate swaps - losses 1 8
157 130

7 Staff costs
The Company had no employees during the year (2021: none).
The directors received no emoluments from the Company during the year (2021: £nil) in respect of services to

the Company.

8 Tax on profit

Tax credited in the profit and loss account

2022 2021
£m £m
Current taxation
UK corporation tax (1) -
UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods (1) 3)
2 3)
Total current income tax (2) 3)
Deferred taxation .
Arising from origination and reversal of temporary differences 29) -
Deferred tax credit relating to changes in tax rates and laws - (15)
Deferred tax prior period adjustment 2 3
Deferred tax now recognised (28) -
Total deferred taxation (55) (12)
Tax credit in the profit and loss account (57) (15)
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E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

8 Tax on profit (continued)

The tax on profit before tax for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2021:
higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2021: 19%).

The differences are reconciled below:

2022 2021
£m £m
Profit before tax 79 384
Corporation tax at standard rate ' 15 73
Decrease in current tax from adjustment for prior periods ‘ 1) 3)
Increase/(decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible in
determining taxable profit (tax loss) 1 (1)
Deferred tax expense from unrecognised tax loss or credit - 30
Deferred tax prior period adjustment 2 3
Deferred tax credit relating to changes in tax rates or laws , (8) (22)
Decrease from effect dividends from UK companies (38) 95)
Deferred tax now recognised (28) -
Total tax credit (57) (15)

In the Spring Budget 2021, the UK Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate
would increase to 25% (rather than remaining at 19%, as previously enacted). This new law was substantively
enacted on 24 May 2021. In the Autumn Statement in November 2022, the government confirmed the increase
in corporation tax rate to 25% from April 2023. Deferred taxes at the balance sheet date have been measured
using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements.

The corporation tax receivable has been reduced by £2 million because of group relief received from a fellow
group undertaking for which a payment will be received (2021: £3 million).

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Net deferred

Asset Liability tax

2022 £m £m £m

Foreign exchange contracts - 2 2
Loans and borrowings (70) - (70)
(70) 2 (68)

Net deferred

Asset Liability tax

2021 £m £m £m

Foreign exchange contracts - 1 1
Loans and borrowings (12) - (12)
(12) 1 (11)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

8 Tax on profit (continued)

Deferred tax movement during the year:

Recognised in

other At

At 1 January Recognised in  comprehensive 31 December

2022 income income 2022

£m £fm £m £m

Foreign exchange contracts 1 2 1 2
Loans and borrowings (12) (58) - (70)
at (56) 8y (68)

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:
Recognised in

other At

At 1 January Recognised in  comprehensive 31 December

2021 income income 2021

£m £m £m £m

Foreign exchange contracts 4) - S 1
Derivatives ’ 4 - 4 -
Loans and borrowings - (12) - (12)
- (12) 1 (11)

There is a. potential deferred tax asset in respect of restricted interest payable of £116 million, of which £70
million has been recognised on the basis of a 10 year outlook of the E.ON UK plc corporate group profit and
debt profile. This leaves £46 million which has not been recognised by the Company (2021: £82 million).

There are unused tax losses of £31 million on which a deferred tax asset has not been recognised and which are

available to be carried forward indefinitely.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

9 Investments

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£m £m
Investments in subsidiaries 5,300 5,300
Subsidiaries £m
Cost
At 1 January 2021 10,547
At 31 December 2021 10,547
At 1 January 2022 10,547
At 31 December 2022 10,547
Provision
At 1 January 2021 ' 5,247
At 31 December 2021 5,247
At 1 January 2022 5,247
At 31 December 2022 5,247
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2022 5,300
At 31 December 2021 ' 5,300

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by either their underlying net assets
or through discounted future cash flows based on value in use calculations.

Page 26



E.ON UK Holding Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

9 Investments (continued)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

E.ON UK plc*

Powergen Limited*
Powergen UK Investments *

Citigen (London) Limited

E.ON Energy ECO Installations
Limited

E.ON  Energy
Services Limited

E.ON Energy Solutions Limited

Installation

E.ON Next Energy Limited

E.ON Project Earth Limited

E.ON UK CHP Limited

E.ON UK Energy Markets
Limited -
E.ON UK Heat Limited

E.ON UK Infrastructure

Services Limited

E.ON UK Steven's
Limited

Croft

Principal activity

Buying and selling renewable energy,
ROCs and REGOs and intermediate
holding company

Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Sale of energy services involving the
supply of heating hot water and
ventilation

Sale of energy services

Hardware installation services for

residential customers

Sale of electricity, gas and other
energy-related products to residential,
business and industrial customers
throughout Great Britain

Sale of electricity, gas and other
energy-related products to residential
and business customers throughout
Great Britain

Leasing of ground source heating
systems

Sale of energy and related services,
primarily from the operation of
combined heat and power plants
Energy procurement business

Energy solutions business

Operation of biomass plant

Operation of biomass plant
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Holding

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Proportion

of ownership
interest and
voting rights
held

2022 2021
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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9 Investments (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Lighting  for  Staffordshire

Holdings Limited

Lighting  for  Staffordshire
Limited

Plus Shipping Services Limited

CHN Contractors Limited

CHN Electrical Services
Limited

CHN Group Ltd

CHN Special Projects Limited

East Midlands Electricity Share
Scheme Trustees Limited

E.ON (Cross-Border) Pension
Trustees Limited

E.ON Energy Gas (Eastern)
Limited

E.ON Energy Gas (Northwest)
Limited

E.ON IT UK Limited

PG 2022 Limited

E.ON UK Energy Services
Limited
E.ON UK Industrial Shipping
Limited

E.ON UK Pension Trustees
Limited

Principal activity

Holding company of Lighting for
Staffordshire Limited, a subsidiary
company established for the financing,
organisation and opération of a street
lighting scheme in Staffordshire,
under the Government's Private
Finance Initiative Scheme

Servicing of street lighting

Provides gas shipping services
Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company
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Holding

Ordinary 4
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Limited by
guarantee

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Proportion
of ownership
interest and
voting rights

held
2022

60%

60%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

2021
60%

60%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100% - |
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
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9 Investments (continued)

Name of subsidiary

E.ON UK Property Services

Limited

E.ON UK PS Limited '

E.ON UK Secretaries Limited

E.ON UK Trustees Limited

Economy Power Limited

Industry Development Services

Limited

Scorebreeze Limited (formerly

Matrix Control
Limited)

Solutions

Powergen Power No. 1 Limited

Powergen Power No. 2 Limited

The Power
Company Limited

Generation

Novo Innovations Limited

Avon Energy Partners Holdings

E.ON UK Directors Limited

East Midlands

Electricity

Distribution Holdings

Energy Collection

Limited

Services

Foray 1137 Limited (formerly
known as Midlands Electricity

Limited)

Utility Debt Services Limited

Principal activity

Dormant company
Dormant compaﬂy
Dormant company ‘
Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Placed in members' voluntary
liquidation

Dissolved on 11.10.22

Dissolved on 11.10.22

Dissolved on 11.10.22

Dissolved on 11.10.22

Dissolved on 11.10.22

Dissolved on 11.10.22
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Holding

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Limited by
guarantee

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares
Ordiriary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Proportion
of ownership
interest and
voting rights

held
2022

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%

0%

2021
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100% ’
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
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9 Investments (continued)

Proportion
of ownership
interest and
voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Holding held
2022 2021

Ergon Overseas Holdings Dissolved on 23.12.22 Ordinary 0% 100%
shares

Powergen International Dissolved on 04.04.23 Ordinary 0% 100%
shares

Powergen Holdings B.V. Dissolved on 31.05.23 Ordinary 0% 100%
shares

* indicates direct investment of the Company

All of the undertakings disclosed above are incorporated in the United Kingdom and have a registered office of
Westwood Way, Westwood Business Park, Coventry, England, CV4 8LG. The only exceptions to this are Novo
Innovations Limited and Powergen International which both have a registered office of C/o Bishop Fleming
LLP, 10 Temple Back, Bristol, BS1 6FL and Powergen Holdings B.V. which is incorporated in the Netherlands.

Associates

Details of the indirect associates as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights held
Name of associate Principal activity 2022 2021
Hams Hall Management Company Limited  Control, supervision, maintenance and 44.8% 39%
' management of the premises known as
Hams Hall, Coleshill, Birmingham,
for the benefit of the tenants

ECO2 Solutions Group Limited Supply and installation of solar panels  49% 49%

Gemserv Limited Consultancy services 19.9% 19.9%

All of the undertakings disclosed above are incorporated in the United Kingdom. Hams Hall Management
Company Limited has a registered office address of Gowling WLG (UK) LLP, Snow Hill, Queensway,
Birmingham, B4 6WR, ECO2 Solutions Group Limited has a registered office address of Unit 8 John Samuel
Building, Arthur Drive Hoo Farm Industrial Estate, Kidderminster, Worcestershire, DY11 7RA and Gemserv
Limited has a registered office address of 8 Fenchurch Place, London, EC3M 4AlJ.
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10 Debtors: amounts falling due after one year
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£m £m

Amounts owed by group undertakings . : 896 900
Deferred tax assets 68 11
Commodity and other derivative financial instruments 8 -
972 911

During 2021, six loans of £150 million each were made to E.ON SE that mature in 2037. The average interest
rate for these loans is 2.23%.

Amounts owed by group undertakings are stated after loss allowances of £4 million (2021: £nil).

Derivative financial instruments of £8 million are classified as non current (2021: £nil). Foreign currency swaps,
that mature in 2024, have been entered into with E.ON SE with the objective of stabilising the exchange rates,
under which certain loans became equivalent to sterling assets of £8 million (2021: £nil) at interest rates of
6.3%.

11 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£m £m

Amounts owed by group undertakings 749 547
Loans to related parties 9 -
758 547

Amounts owed by group undertakings at 31 December 2022 are unsecured. Interest bearing loans totalling £749
million (2021: £547 million) bear interest at a rate of SONIA plus 52 basis points.

All other amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had made available to fellow subsidiaries within the E.ON SE group
committed facilities totalling £243 million (2021: £243 million), of which £99 million (2021: £104 million) was
still available for drawdown.

Amounts owed by group undertakings are stated after loss allowances of £3 million (2021: £4 million).

Loan to related parties consists of an interest bearing loan of £9 million which bears interest at 3% over the
Bank of England base rate (2021: £nil). The loan was fully settled in February 2023.
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12 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
’ 31 December

31 December

2022 2021

£m £m

Amounts owed to group undertakings ' 598 369
Other creditors 5 5
603 374

Amounts owed to group undertakings at 31 December 2022 include the following unsecured loan which is

repayable on demand:

A loan of £535 million (2021: £300 million) from E.ON SE which bears interest at SONIA minus 5 basis points

and currently rolls forward (principal and interest) on a daily basis.

All other amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

13 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

31 December
2022
£m

Amounts owed to group undertakings 4,468

31 December
2021

£m

4,456

Amounts owed to group undertakings at 31 December 2022 include the following unsecured loans:

Four loans totalling £2,700 million (2021: £2,700 million) from E.ON UK plc which bears interest at a welghted

average rate of 1.14% and which mature in 2024, 2026, 2028 and 2031.

A loan of £900 million (2021: £900 million) from E.ON International Finance B.V. which bears interest at a rate
of 6.075%. This loan was novated to the Company from E.ON UK plc for its nominal value during the prior

year and is due for repayment in 2037.

A loan of £700 million (2021: £700 million) from E.ON SE which bears interest at a rate of 7.4% and is due for

repayment in January 2039.

Two loans totalling €200 million (2021: two loans totalling €200 million) from E.ON SE which bear interest at a
weighted average rate of 6.3% and are due for repayment in 2024. These loans were novated from MEON
Pensions GmbH to E.ON SE during 2022 for its nominal value and are due for repayment in 2024.
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13 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Company's long-term borrowings was as follows:
31 December 31 December

2022 2021
£m £m
In more than one year, but no more than two years 1,178 -
In more than two years, but no more than five years 600 1,168
In more than five years . 2,690 3,288
' 4,468 4,456
14 Called up share capital
2022 2021
Allotted, called up and fully paid £m £m
- 7,410,900,576 (2021: 7,410,900,576) ordinary shares of £0.123 each 911 911
15 Dividends
Interim dividends paid
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
A £m £m
Interim dividend of £0.0135 (2021 - £nil ) per each ordinary share 100 -

16 Financial risk review

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to financial risks and the Company’s management
of capital.

Credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk arising from the use of financial instruments and from operating activities, the
Company enters into transactions only with counterparties that satisfy the E.ON SE group's internally
established minimum requirements. Maximum credit risk limits are set on the basis of credit quality ratings
established internally, and from Moody's and Standard & Poor's. The setting and monitoring of credit limits is
subject to certain minimum requirements applicable throughout the E.ON SE group. Long-term contracts arising
from the operating activities and asset management transactions are not included in this process. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the derivative financial instruments and the
amounts owed by group undertakings.

Financial assets are considered to be at greater risk of impairment where there is a significant increase in credit
risk, being a decrease in internal rating of at least three tiers. Amounts are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators of this can include insolvency and legal disputes regarding

repayment. ’

During 2022, a new credit line was opened by the Company with E.ON SE for £500 million.
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16 Financial risk review (continued)

2022 2021
£m £m
1,726 1,458

Receivables - existing companies with no defaults in past.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
Following a review it has been agreed that as all the financial agreements are within the E.ON SE group, any
liquidity risk is minimal. The E.ON UK plc treasury team monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity
requirements to ensure that the Company has sufficient cash to meet operational needs at all times to ensure that
borrowing limits are not breached. Any surplus cash held by the Company is transferred to E.ON SE.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

The following tables set out the remaining contractual maturities of the Cdmpany’s financial liabilities by type.

Expected More

Carrying cash 1to<2 2to<S than §

amount flows <1 year years years years

As at 31 December 2022 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings (5,066) (6,944) (746) (1,312) (982) (3,904)
Cross currency swaps (net) - (6) ) (5) - -
Expected More

Carrying cash l1to<2 2to <5 than §

amount flows <1 year years years years

As at 31 December 2021 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings (4,832) (6,860) (516) (147) (1,442) (4,755)
Cross currency swaps (net) - (7 () (1) (5) -

Market risk

The Company's definition of market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Company acts as a holding company and does not enter into trades or sales and as such has no
commodity price risk.
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16 Financial risk review (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Euros, which arise when recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity's functional currency. The E.ON SE board require group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. The Company hedges its entire foreign exchange risk exposure with E.ON SE.
All foreign exchange rate exposure is hedged and therefore it is expected that movements in foreign exchange
rates will have no impact on post tax profit or losses. The Company uses cross currency swaps to manage the
foreign exchange exposure. Cross .currency swaps are entered into to convert long term Euro loans into
equivalent sterling loans. They are designated as cash flow hedges under FRS 101. Currency swaps are valued
separately at their forward rates and prices as of the balance sheet date.

The effects of the cross currency swaps on the Company's financial position and performance are as follows:

2022 2021

Asset Liability Asset Liability
Cross currency swaps .
Carrying amount £nil - £nil -
Notional amount €200m - €200m -
Maturity date 2024 - 2024 -
Hedge ratio 1:1 - 1:1 -
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging
instruments since 1 January n/a - £(24)m -
Change in value of hedged item used to
determine hedge effectiveness n/a - £25m -

Capital risk management
The Company defines capital as called up share capital and profit and loss account.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for its shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the

cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to its
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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16 Financial risk review (continued)

Cash flow hedges

During 2022 a decision was made to terminate the cash flow hedge and, as at 31 December 2022 there were no
cash flow hedges in place. The following table indicates the period in which the discounted cash flows
associated with cash flow hedging instruments were expected to affect the profit and loss:

Expected
ash flows <1 year
£m £m
) ey
Liabilities
2022
£m

1to<2
year
£m

ey

Assets
2021
£m

2to <5
year
£m

®)

Liabilities
2021
£m

Carrying
amount ¢
£m
As at 31 December 2021
- Cross currency swaps assets -
17 Financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
2022
£m
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge -
Cross currency swaps - cash flow
hedge -
Cross currency swaps 8
8
Non-current portion 8

~

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the maturity of the

hedged item is less than 12 months.

The ineffective portion recognised in the profit and loss account that arises from cash flow hedges is £nil (2021:

loss of £545,000).

The Company's hedging reserves disclosed in the statement to changes in equity relate to the following hedging

instruments:
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17 Financial instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedge reserve

Opening balance at 1 January 2021

Change in fair value of hedging instrument recognised in

OCI

Costs of hedging deferred and recognised OCI

Reclassified from OCI to profit or loss
Deferred tax

Closing balance 31 December 2021
Reclassified from OCI to profit or loss

Closing balance 31 December 2022

Fair value of financial instruments

Assets
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Derivative financial instruments

Liabilities
Amounts due to group undertakings
Derivative financial instruments

Cost of hedging Cash flow
reserve hedge reserve Total
£m £m £fm
3 - 3
- 2D 2y}
¢)) - ()]
- 25 25
- 1) 1 -
1 3 4
) 3 C))
Carrying value Carrying value Fair value Fair value
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
1,654 1,447 1,654 1,447
8 - 8 -
1,662 1,447 1,662 1,447
(5,066) (4,825) (4,075) (6,860)
(5,066) (4,825) (4,075) (6,860)

Within assets amounts owed by group undertakings, are balances owed by E.ON SE group companies and are

repayable on demand.

Within liabilities amounts due to group undertakings, are balances which are repayable on demand as well as

long term loans.
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18 Ultimate holding company

The immediate parent undertaking is E.ON Finanzanlagen GmbH. The ultimate parent undertaking and
controlling party is E.ON SE, a company incorporated in Germany, which is the parent company of the largest
and smallest group to consolidate these financial statements. Copies of E.ON SE's financial statements are
available from the offices of E.ON SE at the following address:

E.ON SE
Briisseler Platz 1
45131 Essen
Germany
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We Connect
Everyone To
Good Energy ...

... building open energy
eco-systems, and creating
smart solutions that'make
sustainable energy choices
easy, for everyone.
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% Energy Networks

Our distribution networks are the backbone of the new
energy world. We are gradually developing them into
intelligent platforms that control complex energy and
data flows and provide customers with new options for
dealing with energy. Without distribution networks there

can be no energy transition and no climate pr ion. The
expansion. modernization, and operation of distribution
networks support security of supply and ensure the most
efficient use of green electricity. This makes our networks
the foundation of livable cities. communities, and regions.

@ Customer Solutions

Our solutions help customers meet their personat energy.
needs and decarbonization goals. This includes energy
sates, which offers a wide range of green electricity and
green gas tariffs. as well as our solutions business, which
provides innovative, sustainable. and digital products and
services. Solar power systems, eMobility, energy storage.
sensible energy control, and solutions for sector
integration enable our custorners to reduce their costs
and emissions and also to increase their comfort and
quality of life. This applies equally to residential
customers and small businesses as well as large
companies and municipalities.

—
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Europe’s energy system is becoming
ever lower in CO2, more decentralized,
and more digital. In short: more
sustainable.

Our two core businesses—energy networks
and customer solutions—are playing a big role
in making this happen. E.ON is one of Europe’s
largest operators of energy networks and
energy infrastructure and providers of
innovative customer solutions. The
contribution of our roughly 72,000 employees
is therefore crucial to successfully propelling
the energy transition in Europe.

ﬁfzﬂﬁ%ﬁ
A

O Market presence

@ Headquarter
Essen, Germany

(
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Europe’s energy markets markedly impacted in 2022 by
the repercussions of the Russia-Ukraine war

E.ON performed well amid the difficult market
environment and surpassed its forecast, recording
adjusted EBITDA of €8.1 billion and adjusted earnings
per share of €1.05 for the 2022 financial year

Outlook for the 2023 financial year: adjusted EBITDA of
between €7.8 and €8.0 billion, adjusted net income of
between €2.3 and €2.5 billion anticipated

Dividend of €0.51 per share proposed for the 2022
financial year; this corresponds to a 4 percent increase
relative to the prior year

Interest-rate environment has positive effect on pension
tiabilities; debt factor at year-end 2022 significantly
below the previous forecast range of 4.8 to 5.2
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How We Create Value

The following ovesview uses examples and relevant data to show how we create value for our stakeholders. The three key elements of
E.ON's strategy inability. digitalization, and growth—are the centerpiece of our business model and deeply embedded in the way
we think. work, and impact people’s lives. This overview is guided by the International Integrated Reporting Council's (TIIRC”) framewaork.

Inputs

l! Fi;la;\cials

Tott investments 2023-2027 €33bn
Credit Rating Strong BBB/Baa
Share of Group funding via green bonds >50%
%‘ Operations

Connacted renowablos capacity 89.2GW .
Bacldantial ST 133,000 .
Energy sales customers -48m
Energy Infrestructure Assets -5,700

08\‘3 Digitalization

Share of IT applications in the eloud -75%
Share of customer accounts

migrated to digital platforms -35%
@ People

Number of employees? 69,378
Training hours per employee per year 18.2
Nationatities 110

Note: Data presentad for tull-year 2022 or a5 of Decomber 31, 2022.

Solar systams, batteries, efficlent haating such o5 host pumps, wallnounted charging polnts.

INumber of does L y orintens,
Thia figure reparts full time equivalents ("FTE?), not persons.

Connecting
Everyone To
Good Energy

.
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Outputs
T ™

|d Financials

Returmn on capital employed -9%
Earnings por share yaar on year growth? 9%
Dividend per sharo €0.51
@ Oparations

Regutated asset base growth at least 8%*
SAIDI® Germany 23.6 minutes
Share of green power sales 44%

Generated energy: povrer, heat, cooling & steam =27 TWh

9% pigitalization

Smart Energy Mater installations 12.2m
Smart secondary substations >10,000
ﬁ’} People

Share of female exscutives 23%
Average length of service 13 years
Corporate volunteering hours ’ 13,340 )

Naote: Dats presened for full-yoar 2022 or w3 of December 31, 2022,

*Earrings par chare from edjusted net incoms compared to prior year.

CAGR 2022~2027. Powes onty, Assuming f eetwork ¥
canstant FX-rate as of Docember 31, 2022. Inctuding Turkey and Slovakizn 2SE.

Sy ¥ J ion i i por customer peryear in Germany).
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How We Make an Impact VvV

®0 ° Q
Ve 7=

WE cperate the backbone for Europe’s WE take responsibitity for society and 'WE enable our custamers to participate 'WE tackte the massively increasing WE are the change agentin the

green cnergy transition: more than 15% ensure stability: more than 20% of all in the encrgy transition by making our complexity of the energy world: encrgy transition for customers, cities,
of all renewables in Europe are Europasn and UK citizens rely on secure solutions accessible on thelr Individual dighalization enables us to smartly and industrics; together with our
connected ta our grids. and atfordable energy provided by EON. Journsys to net zero. eontrol the volatile feed in from ctustomers wo are saving more than

renswabls power preducers and unlock 100 millisn tons of CO,e cach year.
additional value for our businesses.

L Our business activities make a significant contribution to the following UN Sustainable Development Goals J

Y

T e

T
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Key Performance

Indicators

Financial

Earnings per share from
adjusted netincome (EPS)

2027 argat

- -€0. 97

Dividend per Share (€)

0.51
Annual dividend
growthup to
5 percent
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Investments (€m)
i 4,748
4464
Totalinvestments

€33bn

|
|
[ l of around
I
I
|
|
| t

|
|
l
021

U

Solid financial targets

Capital structure with strong rating

BBB/Baa

Debt factor

<5.0

2022 -> 2023-2027

2021 2022 <) 2023-2027

E.ON Group adjusted EBITDA (€m)

7,889 8,059

|
-

!
2021 2022 =) Targetby2027
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Key Performance

Indicators

Sustainability

Serious incidents and fatalities
among employees (SIF)!

0.09

<0.07

C

2021 2022 - 2020
targot

umber of sereus incidents and feteliies ameng empleyees
oer milion hours of werk,

Community investment 2022

+48%'

Compared ts 2021

Corporate Volunteering 2022

13,340 hours

Lost time injury frequency

among employees?
221 | 08
]
1
1
.
)
2021 2022

*Number of workrrelated sccidents resiting
In lo51 tims per millien hours of werk.
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Proportion of female executives (%)

232

21

2021 2022 -> 2031
target

CO, footprint {million tons CO, equivalents)

3.71
30
103.58 2388
I.ut ‘
8258
- 0/,1
75% .100%*
—
2021 2022 «) 2030 <) 2040
target targot

FerScapelerd 2nlsve 0 2000fgures. B3 Scopet D Scape2 - Scaped
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Key Performance
Indicators

Energy Networks

Regulated asset base (RAB)* (€bn)
36.4in 2022 (34.5in 2021)

Power
31.1(20.3)

Share of renewables generation capacity
connected to E.ON's power grid (%)

78

2021 2022

Number of smart energy meter
installations in E.ON markets (millions)

1218
9.65
2021 2022

10
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Energy transmitted (billion kWh)

Power

3378 | .

| 320. Gas

L

ﬁ

| :

| o

| P
2021 2022 2021 2022

Average duration of grid outages for electricity
(SAIDI?) (minutes per year)

Czech Republic?
451
Sweden
182 |
| | ] i
2 e | 1z i
[ —

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
ISystem Averege h‘nnuvdm Ouration Indax.

{tornad).
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Key Performance
Indicators

Customer Solutions

Share of green power sales (%)

2021 2022

-

Energy Sales and residential customer solutions

Numbar of electricity and gas customers? (millions)

513

478

2021

Thwhudes customers in Turkey and 25E' custemers in Slovakla,
Decreasein numbes of custamers in 2022 mainty dus te
fasnaturing of vales business in Hungery,

2022

Sold eMobility
charging points 2022

20,417

1
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Numbar of residential R
(theusands)
133
125
2021 2022

Salar systems, bettesies, efficient heating zuch
At hoat pumpe, walemeunted charging oointa,

Energy Infrastructure Solutions (EIS)

Generated energy: heating, cooling, end steam (TWh)

18.9 195

2021 2022
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Key Figures of
the E.ON Group

Financiat .

IAdpsted for non~operating effeess. - This figure ia again the same a3 the ssset-ratiement
¢ - nthe C ks Mmmnmnmﬁm

the actual amournt of E.ON's obl

emount. - X0hemy powza.- of EON SE -*8
utstanding tweighted avarage} - For G ' te
managemen’s dridond praposal.
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[Financial Figures |
€inmilions 2022 2021 +-%
Sales 115,660 72.358 50
justed EBITDA from iness! 6975 6272 1
Adjusted EBITDAY 8053 7.889 2
- Regutated business (%) 66 61 8
- Quasi and long business (%) 4 5 -20
— Merchant business (%) 30 34 -12
Adjusted EBIT! 5.197 4,723 10
Netincomeioss 2.242 6,305 -58
Net ¥ © of EON SE 1831 4,691 -61
Adjusted net income? 2.728 2.503 9
4,753 4.762 [
Cash provided by operating actvites 10,045 4.069 147
Cash provided by aperating activities before interest and taxes 11511 5.639 104
Economic net debit (at year-endp 32.742 38,773 -16
Debt factor? 41 4.9 -17
Credit rating S&P BB3 888 -
Credit rating Moody’s Baa2 B3a?2 -
Credit rating Fitch BBB+ - -
M capitat employed 58,760 60,911 -4
Equity 21.867 17.889 22
Total assets 134.009 119,759 12
Cash Conversion Rate (%) 151 80 893
ROCE (36) 8.8 7.8 13°
_Eamings per share*® () 0.70 180 -61
Adjusted net income per share*S (€} 105 0.96 9
Dividend per share® (€) 0.51 0.43 4
Divided payout 1.331 1.278

12
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Key Figures of o lomaiefan ——]

, Environment
the E.ON Group s -
* . Scope 1 (miltions of metric tons) 288 n
! Seope 2 (millions of metric tons) (ocation-based) 3.38 2.90
. - Scope 3 {miltions of metric tons) (market-based) 82.68 103.58
Sustainability : EU wmxonormy algned capex 41 % 5
. EU taxonomy aligned opex (3%6)* . 97 98
EU abigned sates (3)! 97 99
Avoided CO, emissions. mgema with our customers (millions of mevic tonsp 108 107
Share of o to E.ON's power grid (%)? 85 78
| Ecologica network corridar ranzgement (%) 8 11
Numbers of smart energy meter . 12,178 9,654
Nurmbes of charging points sotd by EON , 20.417 na
Green power as a proportion of total power sales (36) 44 33
; Social
Employees of the EON Group (at year-end)* . 71613 72169
Proporticn of wormen (%) 31 32
. A Average age of employees 42 42
. Serious inciderts and fatalities ("SIP") among employees® 0.04 0.09
. Lost time injury frequency (LTIFY) among employees® 21 21
Proportion of fves (%) 23 21
People (hours per employee)? 18.2 14.7
System average interruption duration index (*SAIDI*) (minutes)®
' Germany 24 22
. Sweden . 121 116
. Czech Reputitic ) ' 451 182
' Community contrastion (€ in millions) 18 12
proportx omr-signad cpex. opex, sed wlcs et 1 -cigtle activides, - MThis ' Vol ivites of EON (rurvber of volunteer hours) 13.340 8.506
missiors : . . .
the gy “ i ity. Mumber of does not ncluds . - : Sovemance
work-study stude "h:':n;:_' inciden o .;F")n:m fery jon of women on the isory Board 30 30
e per of work, - "Averd; Proportion of independent Supervisory Board members (%) 100 100
nsm::;rmnwmm:nmo %mw;wd;md’m“ i ESG wrgets induded i Board i from 2022 rds 4 Nein
i 13 EON Integrated Annual Report 2022
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Three Good Reasons to
Investin E.ON Stock

|/\7' Dividend Growth

Our stable and forward-looking
business portfolio is the foundation
for sustainable dividend growth.

Sustainability
- " Our objective is a climate-neutral
s t. Q ] s y society. Our enormous investments
) } PN 4 in a sustainable energy system are

S hetping get there.

’ﬁ_’& Energy transition accelerator

We are driving the green energy
transition through digitalization
and innovation. This is essentiat
for a more renewable and secure
energy system.

;
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To Our Investors

< E.ON on the Capitat Market - CEOQ Letter
To Our Investors
E.ON on the Capital Market

Russia-Ukraine War and Encrgy Crisis Affect Capital
Markets

E.ON stock'’s value performance at the end of 2022 had declined

by about 23 percent relative to its year-end closing price for 2021,

thereby underperforming the DAX index of blue-chip German
stocks (-12 percent) and also its European peer index. the Euro

> Report of the Supervisory Board

Stoxx 600 Utilities (-11 percent). E.ON stock closed 2022 ata
price of €9.33 compared with €12.19 at year-end 2021. The
Russia-Ukraine war as well as the energy crisis, which affected the
German encrgy cector in particular (the chapter entitled
“Macroeconomic and Industry Environment® contains more
information). had a significant impact on the performance of
European and German stocks in 2022. E.ON stock was exposed to
even greater volatility than its peers and did not stabilize itself until
the fourth quarter of 2022,

= Contents Q Search & Back

Continuous Dividend Growth

At the 2022 Annual Shareholders Meeting on May 17, 2023, the
Management Board and Supervisory Board will propose paying out
a cash dridend of €0.54 pér share tér the 2022 financial year
(prior year: €0.49). Based an E.ON stock's year-end 2022 closing
price. the dividend yield is 5 percent. The payout ratio (as a
percentage of adjusted net income) is 49 percent. Our dividend
policy aims to offer our shareholders attractive dividend growth of
up to 5 percent annually.

E.ON Stock Performance in 2022 Dividend per Share
Percentages . = EON = DAX' = Stoxx Utilities* € per share =®- Dividend payout ratio®
100 0.50
90 - 0.40
804 0.30
704 0.20
60 -’ 0.10 1
. 4
Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.
Band o e prrwmance nde. :::;::f lymnﬂ::::n:: Sharchalders Mavting

15
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To Our Investors

- E.ON on the Capital Market - CEO Letter
.

[ E.ON Stock Key Figures
Per share () 2022 2021
Dividend® 0.51 0.49
Dividend payout® (€ in millfions) 1.331 1278
Twetve-month high® 12.38 12.28
Twetve-month low? 7.41 8.27
Year-end closing price? 933 1218
Market capi ign” (€ in billions) 24.60 32.20
For the 2022
Source: NASDAQ

Shareholder Structure by Group®

60% 21%
Retall investors

Institutionsl investors

Thehsdes RWE. treasury shares and ather.
Source; NASDAQ (13 of Decomber 31, 2022).

19%

- Report of the Supervisory Board

Broad International Investor Base

The most recent survey at year-end 2022 shows that E.ON stock
has roughly 60 percent institutional investors. roughly 21 percent
retail investors. and about 19 px other s |l sin
Germany hold about 42 percent of E.ON stock. those outside
Germany about 58 percent.

E.ON Stock Is Represented on Numerous Stock
Exchanges and in a Variety of Indices

E.ON stock trades in Frankfurt am Main and on other German
stock exchanges as well as via electronic trading platforms such as
Xetra. itis also availabte on stock exchanges in other European
countries. E.ON stock is included in the DAX and other indices in

Contents (Q Search & Back

Europe, such as the Euro Stoxx 600 Utilities. MSCI World. and the
S&P Europe 350.

E.ON stock trades over the counter on OTC Pink in the United
States in the form of American depositary receipts ("ADRs").
£.ON's ADR program offers U.S. investors the opportunity to
acquire EON stock and hold it in the form of share certificates that
are traded and settled like other U.S. stocks.

Analyst Estimates

E.ON stock is rated by a large number of financial analysts from
various investment banks and brokerage houses. The current
recommendations can be viewed at www.eon.com/analysts-
estimates.

Shareholder Structure by Country/Region?

42%

Germany

\!! @ ®

16% 14% 7%

USAandCanada Restof Europe  Restof Warld

21%

United Kingdom

tPertantages bated on tatal investers identified.
Seurce: NASOAM {ss of December 31, 2022)
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Ongoing Investor Communications Despite Covid-19
Restrictions

Qur investor relations continue to be founded on four principles:
openness, continuity. credibility, and equal treatment of all our
investors. Qur mission is to provide prompt. precise. and relevant
information at our periodic conferences and road shows

ridwide—b intaining regular ications and

relationships is essential for good investor relations. The subsiding
of the Covid-19 pandemic enabled us to carry out a signifi part

- Report of the Supervisory Board

Expansion of Financing Sources and Flexibility

Debt capital represents an important financing source for the EON
Group. That is why we focus on satisfying the demands of
creditors as well as those of sharehotders. During the year under
review. E.ON decided to ion Fitch Ratings to assess its
creditworthiness to supplement the credit ratings of Standard &
Poor’s and Moody's. E.ON beli that anoth issioned
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E.ON has a €10 billion Commercial Paper ("CP?) program and a
$10 billion CP program, under which it can issue short-term notes.
After years of inactivity. the U.S. dollar CP program was renewed
in 2022 and has since then been utitized again.

Financial Framework for Sustainable Funding

rating will provide debt investors with additional visibility and
fid in E.ON's creditworthiness and thus support its

of our investor relations activities in 2022 in person. We will adopt
a hybrid approach of virtual and in-person activities in the future.
This will help us communicate with capital markets efficiently and
purposefully and meet our investors’ needs.

competitiveness for future financing activities. Fitch rates EON's
corporate credit risk at BBB+ with a stable outlook and its bonds at
A-

£.ON aims to maximize the diversity of its investor base to ensure
that it has cost-optimized access to a variety of funding sources at
all imes. In 2022 E.ON therefore began to issue bonds
denominated in other currencies as well. In addition to euro-
denominated corporate bonds totaling €3.4 billion, E.ON made a
nt in Norwegian kroner ("NOK") in 2022 equal to

| E£.0N Stock Symbols and Identification Numbers |
Reurters: Xetra EONGn.DE
Reuters: Frankfurt Stock EONGnF
Frankfurt Stock EQAN GY
Bloomberg: ADR over-the-counter code EQANGY US private pl
Security ldentification Numbers
Germany ENAGSS
3 Number (SIN) DEOOOENAGSSS

E.ON listed within following
sustainability rankings among others:

around €150 million and issued two bonds in Swiss francs {"CHF")
equal to about €306 million. Despite a difficult capitat market
environment, these issuances allowed to secure around €1 billion
in pre-financing for the financial year 2023.

17

Sustainability asp play an increasingly important role in many
intemational i s’ decision for or against a particular
investment. In 2021 E.ON became the first company to fully align
its Green Bond Framework. under which it issues debt instruments
whose issuance p. ds fund inable i projects.
not onty with the ICMA Green Bond Principles but also with the EU
Taxonomy. The EU Taxonomy Regulation defines which economic
activities are classified as environmentally sustainable. thereby
setting a Europe-wide standard for sustainable investment. EON
generally intends to cover more than 50 percent of its annual
financing requirements with green bonds. Accordingly. green
bonds accounted for about 60 percent of total bond financing of
just under €3.9 billion in 2022, We provide detailed information on
the topic of financing in the “Financial Situation” chapter.
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- The E.ON
Management
Board

From left to right
Marc Spieker
Chief Financial Officer

Vietoria Ossadnik
Chief Operating Officer Digital

Leonhard Birnbaum
Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Kénig
Chief Operating Officer Networks The Management Board manages the Company’s business, with all its members bearing
joint responsibility. It determines E.ON's corporate objectives, fundamental strategic

Patrick Lammers . o s
course, corporate policy, and organizational setup.

Chief Operating Officer Commercial
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CEO Letter

Leonhard Birnbaum
Management Board
Chairman and CEO
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Dear Shareholders and Friends of E.ON,

In the current energy crisis E.ON is once again demonstrating responsibility: for our
customers, for society. and for all of Europe. And although one would never hope for such a
crisis, crises always create opportunities as well. The opportunity for our company is an
even faster energy transition and thus the affirmation of our strategy.

The previous 12 months were a challenge in every respect. the likes of which even | haven't
experienced in 20 years in the energy industry. Energy import bottlenecks. rising wholesale
prices, interventionist policies—we were confronted with a variety of situations that we
wouldn’t have considered remotely possible before the energy crisis. Two key issues for
society have always been at the forefront: energy security and energy affordability. One
thing has now become clear: E.ON—the reliable operation of our critical energy
infrastructure and our portfolio of luti has definitely b even more
relevant.

Many correct and necessary policy decisions were made in 2022, in Germany and at the
European level. We at E.ON got a lot right too and worked for our customers every day.
We're much more resilient today than we were just a few months ago. We were able to
successfully taclde the energy crisis and manage risks, particularly in our sales business,
and are in a better position than before. Currentty there's no better owner for this business
than E.ON. This benefits you as shareholders too: I'm pleased to report that we fully met
and in some cases surpassed our financial targets for 2022. In addition. we made great
progress with the Group's debt situation. We're delivering on our dividend promise as well:
at the Annual Shareholdgrs Meeting in May. the Management Board and Supervisery Board
will propose a dividend of 51 cents per share. This is the eighth dividend increase in a row.

Now 2023 must also be a year of correct and courageous decisions to do better in the short
term and to achieve social goals in the long term as part of the energy transition. What
needs to be done to achieve this?
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I have three messages for you:

First, Europe must not lull itself into a false sense of (energy) security. We must continue to
conserve energy, because the crisis isn't yet past. The race to get through this winter is
over, but we need to prepare well for next winter. Wholesale gas prices have now fallen.
Although this is a good sign, itisn't yet a reason to sound the all-ctear. Prices are still at
levels we would've considered unthinkable just a few years ago. Moreover. prices remain
volatile. Nobody knows how prices will develop in the weeks and months ahead. That’s why
now, amid the crisis. we need to lay the groundwork and make the right decisions.

Second. we—by that | mean energy compani jonal and European energy policy. and
European industrial policy—must continue to work at getting better. The prosperity of
Europe, and Germany in particular, is currently at stake. The energy crisis is changing our
competitiveness—structurally and permanently—relative to other regions of the world. In
the long term, we in the energy industry need to offset the structural supply shortfall by
tapping new sources, such as more renewables and hydrogen. In the short term. we need a
lot of LNG too. In addition, we need to dramatically accelerate the energy transition. 2023
must bring new impetus for i inr bles, energy rks, and hydrogen.
And above all for the right regulatery i ives so that i in energy
infrastructure in particular are worthwhile again., Policymakers and regulators in Germany
must also finally get serious about reducing bureaucracy and ending the country's parochial
approach to planning so that the y network expansion can d and r bl
can really take off. E.ON is making a significant contribution to this by expanding its energy
distribution networks. About 15 percent of renewable energy in Europe—and fully two-
thirds in Germany—is connected to our networks. We already operate 800,000 kilometers
of
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distribution networks in Germany alone: That would be enough to circle the earth 20 times.
But the challenge is enormous: to meet the targets we will have to double the distribution
networks by 2030. E.ON, for one. is ready to invest. We invested just under €4 billion to
expand and digitalize our networks in 2022. And we're prepared to invest €26 billion more
across Europe through 2027 to expand our network infrastructure. But to fully implement
this ambitious plan, we first need the right investment conditions.

Because. third, now is the time to invest out of the crisis. Successful decarbonization will
require ive i inr ble and low-carbon energy, but, most importantly. in
robust and digital energy networks. Why am | so sure about this? Because over the past
three years the demand for new network connections has risen exponentially. This is due
not just to new wind and solar facilities, but also to increasing electric-vehicle registrations
and the rapidly growing demand in the heating sector for electric heating or cooling
systems. All these issues will create immense growth opportunities for our business if we
tackie them even faster now. ’

This witl require effective investment incentives for international investors to propel the
green transformation. All the more so now that our company is operating in an environment
of higher interest rates on capital markets, something that so far isn't inadequately

flected in the regulatory sch As E.ON CEO, I'm pushing for improvements in this area
as well in order to accelerate the pace of establishing infr for inable energy.
This infrastructure is needed now more urgently than ever. .
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What can you expect from E.ON in 2023 and beyond?

In 2023 E.ON will again do all it can to transform the energy sector. Our strategy and our
focus on growth, inability. and digitalization put us in precisely the right position to do
so. That's why we’ll be successful in 2023 as well. The current year will lay an important
foundation for our accelerated investment program of around €33 billion over the next five
years. We intend for these investments to enable us to achieve a further increase in
eamings over the same period and now plan for eamings per share (based on adjusted net
income) of about 97 cents in 2027. Our new debt factor target of < 5.0 s also intended to
reflect our confidence in E.ON's financial strength. Last year once again demonstrated
clearly that the current opportunities for our entire business model are greater than ever.
and now we have a unique opportunity to seize them for our benefit. '

This underlines £.ON’s strong position, and | look forward to working with our Management
Board team and employces and above all with you: our customers. business partners, and -
i 3¢ to sfully achieve these ambitious objectives.

VA

Leo Bimbaum
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Report of the
Supervusory

Kart-Ludwig Kley
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board
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Dear Shareholders,

2022 was a particularly challenging year for E.ON. Russia’s war of aggression has lastingly
altered Europe’s previous type of energy supply and therefore posed major challenges for
the Company. Enormous operational challenges resulting from extremely volatile pricesina
continually evolving regulatory environment had to be swiftly overcome to ensure an
uninterrupted supply for our customers. The Supervisory Board would like to thank the  ~
Management Board and all employees for their special efforts in carrying out the
Company's mission.

In the 2022 financial year the Supervisory Board carefully performed all its duties and
obligations under law, the Company's Articles of Association, and its own rules and
procedures. it advised the Management Board in detail about the Company’s management
and lly itored the Manag Board's activities, assuring itself that the
Company's management was tegal. purposeful. and orderly. At four regular meetings it
addressed all issues retevant to the Company. in addition, it carried out two wntten
rmluuon procedures. On a regular basis, the shareholder repr and

P made sep prep for these meetings with the parhcupatmn of
one or severat bers of the Manag: t Board. All bers of the Supervisory Board
attended all meetings.

The Management Board regularly provided the Supervisory Board with timely and
comprehensive infarmation about significant business transactions in both written and oral
form. At the meetings of the full Supervisory Board and its committees. the Supervisory
Board had sufficient opportunity to actively di the Manag Board's reports.
motions, and proposed resolutions. After thoroughly examining and discussing the

resolutions proposed by the Manag, Board, the Supervisory Board voted on them
when it was required by law, the Company's Articles of Association. or the Supervisory
Board's rules and procedures. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board also met on a recurring
basis without the Management Board being present.

In addition, there was a regular exchange of information between the Chairman of the
‘Supervisory Board and the bers of the Manag, Board, in particuar the Chairman,
during the entire financial year. In the case of particularty pertinent issues, the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board was kept informed at all times. He likewise maintained contact with
the members of the Supervisory Board outside of board meetings.
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All meetings of the Supervisory Board and its committees took place in person. Members of
the Supervisory Board unable to attend in person were given the opportunity to attend by
means of video conference. This was made use of in some instances.

Management of the Energy Crisis and Strategy Review

The Supervisory Board closely monitored the g of the chatlenges posed to the
Company by the energy crisis against the backdrop of Russia’s war of aggression. it was
informed by the Management Board on an ongoing basis about the crisis’s implications for
the Company and provided the Manag: 1t Board with detailed advice. The same applies
to the strategy’s refi nt and impl don.

Key Topics of the Supervisory Board's Discussions
Crisis-driven policy and regulatory interventions in countries in which EON is active
constituted a key topic of the Supervisory Board's discussions. In the case of Germany.
these were in particular the planned gas levy. the electricity and gas price caps. and the
d on the temporary continued operation of Isar 2 nuclear power station.
Government intervention in pricing. which was in some cases extensive, especially in
Romania, was the subject of deliberations as well.

In the context of the Group’s operating business, the Supervisory Board addressed at tength
the impact of dramatically higher dity prices on E.ON. the business situation of the
Group and its companies, national and international energy markets, as well as the
currencies that are important to E.ON. It discussed E.ON SE's and the EON Group's asset.
financial, and earnings situation, dividend policy, workforce developments, and earmings
opportunities and risks. The Supervisory Board and the Manag: Board th ghty
discussed the E.ON Group’s medium-term plan for 2023 to 2025. The Supervisory Board
was provided with information on a regular basis about the Company’s cybersecurity.
heatth, {occupational) safety. and environmental performance (in particular, key accident
indicators) as well as current numbers, isfaction, and the ber of
apprentices.
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TOverview of the Ah;andai.te of -Sup_emsory- Board Members at Me—e-(ings of the Super’viso‘ry i
{Board and Its Committees

e R e i ees el
Supervisory Exeautive Risk Sustainability Nomination

Supervisory Board members Board Commi Commi Cornmi Commi
Kley. Karl-Ludwig 4/4 6/6 - - hind
Qlementi, Esich 4/4 6/6 - 173 b
Dybeck Happe, Carolins (until June s . . . .
30, 2022)
Frohlich, Klaus 4/4 - - 373 <
Grillo, Ulrich 44 6/6 44 - -
Groth, Anke (since Ay 1. 2022) 224 - 249" - -
Schmitz, Andreas 444 2/6* 414 - _
Schemitz, Rolf Martin 444 - - - -
Segundo, Karen de 4/4 - - 23 ey
‘Witkens, Deborah 414 - 4/4 3/3* -
Woste, Ewald 414 - - 3n N
Schmitz. Christoph 44 6/6 - - -
Bauer, Katja (since April 1. 2022) 34 - - - -
Krebber, Monika (untit March 31 -
2022) {unti v4 - - u3 -
tuha, Eugi 4t4 - . 33 -
May, Stefan 414 - - 313 -
Pelouh, Mirgslay 41 - . 213 N
Pinczésné Mirton, Szivia 414 " - - - -
Pohls, René 4/4 - 444 - -
Schadz, Fred 4/4 6/6 414 - -
Waltbaumn, Elisabeth 4/4 - 414 - -
Zetd, Albert 414 6/6 - - -

* Participation(s) as & guest.

** Comumitzae mermber unsl March X1, 2022,
+** Comnmiktoe member sincs May 11, 2022,
wves A written G i .

n2072
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Corporate Governance

In the declaration of compliance issued at the end of the year. the Supervisory Board and

the Management Board dectared that E.ON was in full compliance with the
recommendations of the “Government C ission German Corp: Govemance Code,”
dated December 16, 2019, published by the Federal Ministry of Justice and Consumer,
Protection in the official section of the Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) on March 20,
2020. since the last declaration in December 2021

The Supervisory Board and the Management Board also declared that E.ON has been in full
compliance with the recommendations of the “Government Cq ission German Corp
Governance Code,” dated Aprit 28, 2022, published by the Federal Ministry of Justice and
Consumer Protection in the official section of the Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) on June
27.2022. The current version of the declaration of compliance as well as earlier versions
are published on the Intemet at www.eon.com. ’

In early 2023 the Supervisory Board Chairman held discussions with investors on topics
specific to the Supervisory Board at a corporate governance roadshow.

The Supervisory Board is aware of no indications of conflicts of interest involving members
of the Supervisory Board in the 2022 financiat year.

Education and training sessions on selected issues of EON's business were conducted for
Supervisory Board bers in the 2022 fi ial year. The Supervisory Board was given a
practical explanation of the effects of, and defense against. a cyberattack during a visit to
the Cyber Range. In addition, the Supervisory Board was informed about current trends in
corporate governance and their implications for EON. At ancther event, the main
developments and progress in the major digitalization projects at the network business
were pr d. The Dutch lutions b was described in detail ata
meeting held in the Netherlands. Finally, the challenges arising from demographic
developments on the labor market were the subject of ancther event.

The targets for the Supervisory Board's composition. including a competency profile and a
diversity concept, with regard to Recommendation C.1 of the German Corporate
Govemance Code and Section 289f, Paragraph 2, ltem 6 of the German Commercial Code
and the status of the impl ion of the comp y profile in the form of a

qualifications matrix are available in the Corporate Goyemapce Declaration,

= Contents Q Search & Back

Committee Work
o fuliill its duties carefully and efficiently, the Supervisory Board has created committees.

The Executive Committee held four regular and two extraordinary meetings in the 2022
financial year. All members tock partin all of the committee’s meetings. In addition, the
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee attended both extraordinary meetings. At its
meetings, the committee, in particular. addressed current developments in conjunction with
the energy crisis as well as policy and regulatory changes. Additionally. the Executive
Committee dealt with the Management Board's compensation, including the achievement
of Management Board targets for 2022 and the setting of the targets for 2023.
Furthermore, the Executive C tharoughly discussed the strategy review. Finally.
the Executive Committee approved an investment project in Turkey. :

The Innovation and Sustainability Committee met three times. One member was unable to
attend one meeting. Apart from that. all bers ded all of the ittee’s meetings.
The matters addressed by the committee included the progress and specific initiatives in
the area of innovation as well as EON's position in sustainability rankings and the external
perception of EON with regard to sustainability. The further development of the eMobility
business was the topic of extensive discussions as well

The Audit and Risk Committee met four times in 2022. All members attended all meetings.
The committee conducted a thorough review, in particular of the 2021 Financial
Statements of E.ON SE (prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code), the
E.ON Group's 2021 Ci tidated Financial Sta (prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, or “IFRS"). and the 2022 intermediate financial
reports of EON SE. The committee discussed the recommendation for selecting an
independent auditor for the 2022 financial year as well as the intermediate financial reports
and assigned the tasks for the independent auditor’s auditing services, established the audit
priorities, d ined the independent auditor’s comp: ion and reviewed the
independent auditor's qualifications as well as the quality of the independent audit. and
verified the auditor’s qualifications and independence in accordance with the requirements
of the law and the German Corporate Governance Code. The committee also assured itself
that the independent auditor has no conflicts of interest. In addition, the committee
addressed other matters assigned to it by law. the Company's Articles of Association, or the
Supervisory Board's rules and procedures, in particular Intemal Audit's activities and
reports. ing issues. risk g tran with related parties. and
developments in the area of compliance. Furthermore, the committee thoroughly discussed
the Combined Group Manag, Report and the proposal for profit appropriation and
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prepared the relevant recommendations for the Supervisory Board and reported them to
the Supervisory Board. On the basis of the quarterty risk reports, the committee noted that
no risks were identified that might jeopardize the existence of the Group or individual
segments. Furthermore, the committee addressed in detail the implications and the
management of the energy crisis. occupational safety, and the Company’s cyber. legal. and
data-protection risks. In addition, there was a regular exchange of information between the
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and the independent auditor throughout the
financial year.

The Nomination Committee conducted a formal written resolution procedure in Juty 2022
regarding the court appointment of Anke Groth to the Supervisory Board. In addition, the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee made detailed preparations for the reorganization
of the Supervisory Board in 2023. For this purpose, he and the committee members held
discussions with potential candid He also di d issues relating to the Supervisory
Board's future size and composition in the Executive Committee and with shareholder

repi ives. The bers of the Nomination C ittee also consulted in various
groups on the sidelines of Supervisory Board meetings. The Chairman of the Nomination
Committee informed the Supervisory Board on an ongoing basis regarding the status of
deliberations on the upcoming new election. Ata ing in February 2023, the
Nomination C i dopted the final election pr ts for the Annual Shareholders
Meeting.

P

Committee chairpersons reported the agenda and resutts of their respective committee's
meetings to the full Supervisory Board on a regular basis. Information about the
committees’ composition and responsibilities is in the Corporate Governance Declaration.

Examination and Approval of the Financial Statements,
Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
Proposal for Profit Appropriation for the Year Ended
December 31, 2022 :

KPMG AG. Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft. Disseldorf ("KPMG"), audited and submitted
an unqualified auditor’s and/or audit opinion on the C lidated Fi ial of
E.ON SE prepared in accordance with IFRS, the Combined Group Manag 1t Report. and
the Compensation Report pursuant to Section 162 of the German Stock Corporation Act
(*AktG") for the year ended December 31. 2022. The IFRS Consolidated Financial

Contents Q Search € Back

Statements exempt E.ON SE from the requirement to publish Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with German law.

The Supervisory Board reviewed and, at its annual-results meeting on March 14, 2023,
thoroughly discussed—in the presence of the independent auditor and with knowledge of.
and reference to, the Independent Auditor’s Report and the results of the preliminary review
by the Audit and Risk Committee—E.ON SE's Financial Statements prepared in accordance
with the German C cial Code, Consolidated Financial Statements, and Combined
Group Management Report as well as the Management Board's proposal for profit
appropriation. The independent auditor was available for suppl Yy questions and
answers. After {uding its own ination. the Supervisory Board determined that
there are no objections to the findings. It therefore ack Aedged and approved the

Independent Auditor’s Report.

The Supervisory Board also examined the sustainability reporting consisting of the
combined Non-Financial Statement and additional sustainability information which is
integrated into the Combined Group Manag Report. KPMG also audited the Non-
Financial Statement and selected additional sustainability information and issued an
unqualified opinion. The disclosures were subjected to a limited assurance engagement by
KPMG:; selected disclosures were audited with reasonable assurance. Following the final
result of its examination, the Supervisory Board raised no objections to the integrated
sustainability reporting. including the Non-Financial Statement.

On March 14, 2023, the Supervisory Board approved the Financial Statements of EON SE
prepared by the Management Board and the Consotidated Fi ial § 1ts. The
Financial § are thus adopted. The Supervisory Board agrees with the Combined
Group Management Report and, in particular, with its statements concemning the
Company's future devel

P

The Supervisory Board examined the Management Board’s proposal for profit
appropriation, which includes a cash dividend of €0.51 per ordinary share. also taking into
consideration the Company's liquidity and its finance and investment plans. After examining
and weighing all arguments, the Supervisory Board agrees with the Management Board's
proposal for profit appropriation. .
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Personnel Changes on the Supervisory Board

Katja Bauer was appointed to the Supervisory Board effective April 1. 2022. She succeeded
Monika Krebber on the employee side, who retired from the Company effective June 30,
2022. Effective July 1. 2022, the Essen District Court appointed Anke Groth as the

st of Carolina Dybeck-Happe, who ended her service effective June 30, 2022.
Finally, at the end of the year Axel Winterwerber succeeded Albert Zettl. who was
appointed a ber of the Bay rk AG's M Board effective January 1.
2023.

¢l

Klaus Frohlich succeeded Karen de Segundo as Chair of the Innovation and Sustainability
Committee effective May 11. 2022. In addition. likewise on May 11, 2022, Miroslav
Pelouch was elected to succeed Monika Krebber on this committee.

Pages 318 and 319 of the Integrated Annual Report provide an overview of all members of
the Supervisory Board. :

Personal Remarks

Permit me to conclude with a few personal remarks: This is my last shareholder tetter for
E.ON. | have had the privilege of leading the Supervisory Board of this outstanding company
for more than seven years. We took on and accomplished a lot in those seven years: the
Group's separation into E.ON and Uniper, the reorganization of £.ON, the sale of EON's
Uniper stake to Fortum, the acquisition and integration of innogy. the appointment of
Leonhard Bimbaum to succeed Johannes Teyssen as the new Chairman of the

Manag t Board. the navigation of the Company through the Covid-19 pandemic, and
the mutti-faceted measures to tackle the current crisis. No, it was never dull. There was
hardly any time to catch one's breath. But what remains is a sense of satisfaction about all
the things that we shaped together during this time.
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‘

Qur equity stood at €1.3 billion in 2016 and at €21.9 billion in 2022. We recorded adjusted
net income of €0.9 billion in 2016 and €2.7 billion in 2022. We paid out a dividend of €0.27
per share for the 2016 financial year and are proposing a dividend of €0.51 per share for
the 2022 financial year.

Today. E.ON is again in good shape. Our solid finances have laid the foundation for future
growth. Bring on the future.

{ thank the shareholders who placed their trustin me to share responsibility for E.ON's
transformation process over the past seven years.

| would like to thank my Supervisory Board colleagues for their very trusting and extremely
constructive collaboration. which was always focused on the matter at hand. | thank the
Manag Board for its decisive and sful g 't of the Company and the

{lent and trustful collaboration with the Supervisory Board and me personally.

And, on behalf of the entire Supervisory Board, | also express my thanks to all E.ON
_employees. You have done a great job. | wish you all the best. every imaginable success, and
hopefully a little more time to catch your breath.

Essen, March 14, 2023

The Supervisory Board

Best wishes,

A,
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About this Report

GRI 2-1, GRI 2-2, GRI 2-3, GRI 2-4, GRI 2-5, GRI 2-6

The E.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022 for the first time

bines the Company's i | and non-financial
reporting. Sustainability is the centerpiece of E.ON's
strategy and—in every dimension~the standard for our
actions, An integrated report provides our stakeholders
with a holistic and transparent view of our financial
environmental, and social performance.

Standards

This integrated report applies to the EON Group as well as
E.ON SE. E.ON is therefore fulfilling all requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). the
German C ial Code (G bbreviation: “HGB").
and German Accounting Standards (German abbreviation
“DRS"). The combined Non-Financial Statement ("NFS”)
pursuant to Section §§ 315b and 315c in conjunction with
Sections §§ 289b to 289 of the HGB is fully integrated
into the Combined Group Management Report. The Group
Management Report thus contains information on five

D the envir ploy social matters,
human rights, as well as anti-corruption and anti-bribery.
The NFS atso complies with the disclosure requirements of
the EU Taxonomy Regulation. The Non-Finangcial
Statement CNFST) Index indicates where these disclosures
can be found in the integrated report. Other parts of the
Combined Group M: Report include Disclosures
Reqarding Takeovers and the Corporate Governance
Declaration, In addition, the Compensation Report is
integrated into the Annual Report.

E.ON's sustainability reporting which consists of the NFS
and other sustainability disclosures, is guided by the |
findings of its materiality analysis and topics relevant for
stakeholders. It has been prepared with reference to the
GRI Standards 2021 by the Global Reporting Initiative.
The GRI standards covered by the content of a chapter are
displayed on the first page of the chapter. The GRI Index
provides an overview. The Other laformation chapter
contains £.ON's disclosures regarding the Electric Utilities
and Power Generators Standards issued by the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board ("SASB”). EON
is committed to the ten principles of the United Nations
Globat Compact ("UNGC") and supports the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs"). We
describe our contributions to the SDGs in the Strategy
chapter. Our climate-related reporting. which is based on
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD") as well. can be

found in the chapter Qther Information,

Scope

This report encompasses all subsidiaries that are fully
lidated in E.ON's Consolidated Financial

2022. Any deviations are marked accordingly. KPI-based
thresholds are used to distinguish companies that do not
contribute significantly to the report. The next chapter.
Business Model contains more information about the
E.ON Group’s structure and business segments.

The reporting period is the 2022 catendar year. For most
KPIs the corresponding prior-year figure is provided to

29
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improve comparability. Adjustments to prior-year figures of a
KPI are explained in footnotes.

Slztzmen’s on the future development of EON andits

ies are esti based on inf ilable at
the time of reporting. Actual results may deviate from these
statements.

The report was published on March 15, 2023, and is available
in German and English in pdf format. You can download the
pdf version of this report at eon.com. The previous Annual
Report and previous Sustainability Report were published in
March 2022. You can find them and additional reports in the
investor relations archive.

E.ON integrated Annual Report 2022
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Language Assurance
To improve readability. we generally use the shorter name  The Combined Group Manag Report is generally
for companies and org: (such as "E.ON" rather audited as part of the y audit of the fi ial
than “E.ON SE"). statements. Content that is not part of the statutory audit
of the C lidated Fi ial Sta and is theref

Sustainability Ratings
E.ON’s commitment to transparency includes subjecting
its sustainability performance to independent, detailed

ents by specialized ag and capital-market
analysts. The findings of these assessments provide
important guidance to investors and to EON. They help us
identify our strengths and weaknesses and further
improve our performance. The Sustainable Finance
chapter presents the results of sustainability ratings.

excluded from the auditor’s report is identified separately,
as described below. For the NFS and selected additional
sustainability information, 3 separate as

engagement ("Sustainability Assurance”) was also
performed by KPMG AG in accordance with the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements
("ISAE") 3000 (Revised) issued by the Intemational
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board ("IAASB"). The
audit assurance applied to the different contentsis
clarified in the report by means of various symbols.

Symbols next to headings [H2] apply untit the next
heading of the same level of hierarchy. Sections within the
same chapter that were audited with a different assurance
may be marked separately. This is done in longer sections
by means of symbols next to the subheadings [H3]
which apply until the next heading of the same level of
hierarchy. tn addition, individual sections or KPls that are
subject to a different audit assurance may be marked
separately.

30

= Contents Q Search & Back

The corresponding contents are marked as follows:

Not part of the statutory audit. audited with reasonable
assurance as part of the Sustainability Assurance in
accordance with ISAE 3000.

@ Not part of the statutory audit, audited with limited
assurance as part of the Sustainability Assurance in
accordance with ISAE 3000; individual text passages are
indicated by P> .

@ Not part of the statutory audit, unaudited; individual text
passages are indicated by > «

Prior-year figures and quantified changes from the prior year
included in sections marked as audited are audited with limited
assurance.

The precise scope of the audit is described in the Other
Information section in the Independent Auditor’s Report and in
the report on the management review of sustainability
information.

E.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022
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Corporate Profile Customer Solutions

Business Model

E.ON is an investor-owned energy company with approximately
71.600 employees led by Corporate Functions in Essen. The
Group's core business is divided into two segments: Energy
Networks and Customer Solutions. Corporate functions and equity
interests managed directly by E.ON SE are reported under
Corporate Functions/Other. Non-strategic operations are reported
under Non-Core Business until the end of 2022 and effective 2023
under Corporate Functions/Other.

Corporate Functions

Corporate Functions’ main task is to lead the E.ON Group. This
involves charting E.ON's'strategic course and managing and
funding its existing business portfolio. Corporate Functions’ tasks
include optimizing E.ON's overall business across countries and
markets from a fi ial gic. and risk persp and
conducting stakeholder management.

Energy Networks '

This segment consists of EON's power and gas distribution
networks and related activities. It is subdivided into three regional
markets: Germany, Sweden, and East-Central Europe/Turkey
(which consists of the Czech Republic, Hungary, Romanis, Poland.
Croatia, Slovakia, and the stake in Enerjisa Enerji in Turkey. which
is accounted for using the equity method). This segment’s main
tasks include operating its power and gas networks safely and
reliably, carrying out all necessary maintenance and repairs, and
expanding its power and gas networks, which frequently involves
adding cust connections and the cor of bl
energy generation assets.

This segment serves as the platform for working with EON's
customers to actively shape Europe’s energy transition. This
includ pplying s in Europe (excluding Turkey) with
power, gas (conventional and green). and heat and providing them
with sustainable solutions that enhance their energy efficiency,
energy autonomy, and eMobility. E.ON's activities are tailored to
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expectations of stakeholders as well as the requirements of
environmentat, social, and governance ("ESG") rankings and
ratings. We provide an overview of the material and other topicsin
the Non-Financiat Statement ("NFS”) Index.

Identification of Material Topics

E.ON conducted its materiality anatysis in 2022in d. with

the individual needs of customers across all categories: r ial
small and medium-sized enterprises. large commercial and
industrial, sales partners, and public entities. The E.ON Group’s
main presence in this business is in G y. the United Kingd
the Netherlands, Nordics (for ple, Sweden, Denmark. and
Norway). Italy. the Czech Republic. Hungary. Crostia, Romania,
Poland, and Slovakia. In addition. Energy Infrastructure Solutions
engages in activities aimed at decarbonizing commercial
customers, cities, and suchas inable city
solutions and district heating.

Nen-Core Business

This segment consists of the E.ON Group's non-strategic activities.
This applies to the operation and dismantling of nuclear power

the requir of the Non-Financial Reporting Directive
{"NFRD"). The requirements of the Corporate Sustainability
Reporting Directive ("CSRD") were taken into account, but not
applied. We applied the double materiality principle: we considered
the financial perspective as well as the impact perspective. The
process had four steps. which are described below:

Step One: Topic Identification and Collection

E.ON first gathered information and evidence on potentially
material topics. We consulted a variety of sources. induding
regulations, reporting aswellas from
customers, competitors, investors. and non-governmental
organizations ("NGOs"). We used this to create an overview of
possible material topics. These were then compared with our

stations in Germany (whichis r ged by the Pr Elekt:
unit) and the generation business in Turkey. Effective 2023. Non-
Core Business is disclosed under Corporate Functions/Other.

ESG Materiality and Stakeholder -
Engagement

ESG Materiality

GRI3-1.GRI3-2

E.ON has conducted an annual materiality analysis since 2006.
The purpose is to identify and evaluate the sustainability topics

isting material topics, collated, and reduced to a common
denominator. The basis for this was an evaluation that correlates a
topic’s frequency of mention to its importance for the industry.
Experts from Sustainability. Group Accounting. and Investor
Relations divisions reviewed and finally agreed on a short list of
E.ON's potentially material topics.

Step Two: Impact Perspective

E.ON analyzed the impact p

research institutes. suppliers. s. and other stakeholders.
We gave them a questionnaire containing the topics identified in
step one and asked them to rate them. The questionnaire’s

ctive by surveying NGOs,

P

that are most important to the C y and its stakeholders. This
report contains information on the topics whose materiality the
analysis deemed to be particularly high. It also addresses less
material sustainability topics. E.ON thus aims to meet the different

3

findings were then examined in greater depthin stakeholder
interviews. Representatives from the Sustainability. Group
Accounting. investor Relations, and Group Risk functions

E.ON ntegrated Annual Report 2022
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evaluated the survey'’s findings in a workshop, which luded pr din sep hapters in the Integrated Annual Report
the impact analysis. 2022

Step Three: Financial Perspective

E.ON evaluated the fi ial persp by ining the risks
and opportunities associated with the ESG topics contained inits
Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") system. Another workshop
was then held to assess and validate the financial materiality of the
topics identified. Repr from the afor ioned

The chapters of this report provide information on EON's
approach to managing its material topics and outline the
Company's progress in the reporting year. The description of the
management approach is based on GRI 3-3, Management of
material topics.

Ceakeohald

Engagement

functi bility, | Relations, Group A ing, _
and Group Risk—participated as well.

Step Four: Materiality Threshold

E.ON finalized the list of topics by defining a common materiality
threshold for the impact and financial perspectives. Only topics
that exceeded it were considered material. To determine them, we
held a third workshop ing of the ab ioned
participants. The findings were then presented to the
Sustainability Councill which approved E.ON’s materiality analysis
for 2022. '

Material Topics

The findings of the materiality analysis for 2022 are listed below.
The highest relevance from a financial and impact perspective was
- assigned to the following three topics:

o Climate-change mitigation

« Energy affordability

« Reliable energy supply.

The material topic of climate-change mitigation also encompasses
customer solutions that mitigate climate change. Since both

aspects—general climate-change mitigation and customer
solutions that mitigate climate change—are extensive. they are

GRI 2-28. GRI 2-29

E.ON continually seeks dialogue with its various stakeholders. We
want to listen to and understand their points of view and also to
tatk to them openly about the potential short- and long-term
impacts of our business activities. This is an important objective of
our daily work at the local. national, and European level. A
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E.ON ty particip in policy deb onissues that affect
the Company. We use a variety of channels for this. including ’
lobbying. media interviews with our executives, and their

pp ces as public sp s. In addition, policymakers and
regulators frequently invite E.ON to provide its technical and
energy expertise as part of their decision-making processes. The
Company offers its expertise proactively as well. This type of
advocacy are important because the energy sector is significantly
influenced by policy and regulatory decisions. In 2022 we assisted
the German federal government. particularly by supporting its
plans for tackling the energy crisis. E.ON CEQ Leonhard Birnbaum
was 3 ber of the independent Expert C Gas and
Heat. which was commissioned by the German government to
develop proposals that can relieve households and businesses
from the sharp rise in gas prices. Furthermore. E.ON takes partin
discussions on energy. environmental. and climate policy ina
variety of other forums. For example. E.ON CFO Marc Spieker was

stakeholder is any person who or any group that hasani tin

a company. Stakehold is thus a core process of
E.ON's corporate governance. The dialogue formats we choose
vary by stakeholder and topic. They range from information
campaigns and discussion forums with associations and NGOs to
face-to-face discussions and lobbying. For example, EONis
activety involved in the global investor initiative COP (Carbon
Disclosure Project). works with the United Nations Environment
Programme ("UNEP"). and supparts the UN Decade on Ecosystem
Restoration. Furthermore. since 2021 E.ON has been part of the
LEAF Coalition (L ing Emissions by Accelerating Forest
Fi ). whichis d to biodiversity and the protection of
tropical forests. More information on COP and the LEAF Coalition
can be found in the “Climate Protection” chapter. EONis alsoa
member of SolarPower Europe, a European association of energy
ppliers and solar The Solar S dship Initiative
{"SSI”) was set up as part of this association. lts aim is to create
more transparency for solar-power supply chains and to ensure
compliance with human rights.

9ag

32

a ber of the European C: ion’s Platform on Sustainable
Finance until the end of October 2022. tn addition. Leonhard
Bimbaum is part of the European CEO Alliance, an alliance of EU-
wide business leaders who discuss ways to provide additional
support to the EU Green Deal. Effective Noverber 21, 2022,
Leonhard Bimbaum was appointed acting president of Eurelectric.
the association of the European electricity industry. Eurelectric is
an umbrella organization representing more than 3,500 European
companies active in electricity generation, distribution, and supply.
Direct members of Eurelectric are the national associations.
including the German Association of the Energy and Water
Industries (German abbreviation: “BDEW"). Swedenergy. and
Energy UK.

» The Climate Advocacy and Associations Report provides an
overview of E.ON's lobbying approach as well as the associations
and initiatives which the Company is part of and the key positions
it holds in conjunction with its efforts to propel the energy
transition. All of E.ON's lobbying activities and dialogue formats
compty with national and European laws and guidelines on
representing corporate interests and responsible lobbying. «

E.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022
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Below is an overview of E.ON's most important stakeholders, their
significance for E.ON, and their expectations of E.ON.

and Society
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Stakeholder Groups
- — \ o -
Significance Stakeholder Expectations
. 4
Our purchasing decisions d our success. . Custemers - Asecure energy supply at reasoneble prices )
. ‘ + Anactive role in propelling the energy transformation in Europe

+ Support for energy management and energy efficiency .

Our employees’ performance is crucial to our success. Employees « Assfe, i ing, and i work envi ~
« Fair poy and equal opportunity

3

Ourl ' capitalis iat for the ld P of our Invastors + Transparent information about how E.ON manages chancoes and risks
+ Information about our long=term value growth potential

We procure the services of pliers and tors. . Suppliers and business partners « Fair and reliable terms and conditions
« Mutuatly beneficlal collaboration

The transformation of Europe’s energy system can succeed onty if it is activety Regions and Communities « Transparency about ptanned measures

shaped snd supported by people as and citizens. « Active participation st the municipal level

4 Qurb aro strongly infl d by social needs and dovelopmants Policymakers, madia, secisty, + Transp decisi ki d toward the good, fair

and tho politicol decisions based on them. and the general public of customers, and innovative, forward-looking custamor solutions
+ Arcliable, economicat and environmentally friendly energy supply
+ Campliance with laws and regulations

We see Hies and social i as important partners. N N | izations and « Transparency

mental orgenizations provide us with valuable information on public expectations. sustainability experts « Accountability
« Dialogue

- / . B - B .-
33 E.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022
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E.ON is a member of numerous industry networks and trade
associations in individual countries and at the European level. They
enable companies to share information about climate protection,
customer needs, and industry trends and to represent shared
interests to policymakers and regulators. Examples of these
memberships include:

* German Association of Energy and Water Industries (German
abbreviation: “BDEW™): through the BDEW E.ON is also
repr d in two European trade ass: Eurelectric and
Eurogas.

German Industry Initiative for Energy Efficiency (Deutsche
Untemehmensinitiative Energleefﬁnenz or 'DB‘IEFF') amulti-
industry network of comp:. and org d to
enhancing energy efficiency.

« Bitkom: through this industry initiative for a digital economy the
Company is also represented in the Federal Association of
German Industry (Bundesverband der Deutschen Industrie) and
its European umbrella

94 B ope.

E.ON executives take part in thé Economic Council of the COU
e.V. and the Economic Forum of the SPD e.V.

European Distribution System Operators for Smart Gnds
{"EDSO for Smart Grids"): European ing
smart grids and the digitalization of the energy sector

Energy UK: a trade association for energy in the United
Kingdom.

sl ad

in

Swedenergy: a private of
electricity production. sale. and trading in Sweden.

« The Romanian Federation of Associations of Energy Utilities: 3
federation of energy suppliers in Romania.

Non-Core Business: Stakeholder Dialogue on Reliable
Operations and Plant Dismantling

E.ON subsidiary Pr ra is responsible for the safe and
reliable operation and dismantling of its nuclear power plants
("NPPs"}. Ongoing dialogue with stakeholders is essential.
PreussenElektra communicates with a broad spectrum of
stakeholders through press releases and briefings. The company
also uses events and forums to speak directly with its stakeholders
and benefit from their feedback. The aim of all these measures is

Elal
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security and energy autonomy based primarity on decentralized
and le power g and distrib This will require
resilient and digital energy infrastructure: and that is exactly what
E.ON’s power and gas networks represent. Supply security will be
at the forefront. The new growth strategy E.ON formulated in
2021-founded on sustainability. growth, and digitalization—is
part of this future. E.ON's strategy has proven itself to be robust.
even amid disruptive events.

to provid: P f and build trust. In the Energy Networks EONis sy ically
implementmg its strategy in the context of current developments.
In view of the di about the possible continued of inthe 2022 fi | year went mainly toward

NPPs, PreussenElektra enhanced its dialogue wrﬂl loml
stakeholders at Isar NPP. Pr Blektra d
transparent public relations by increasing its online
communications and maintaining an active dialogue with national
media.

Dla.logue will also remain lmportant during NPPs’

ioning and di g. In 2022 E.ON held press events
at all its NPPs. Annual power p!ant talks with key local
stakeholders took place in the fall as well. Some plants also have
dialogue groups for nearby residents. in which Preussentlektra
also participated in 2022. People who live near Brokdorf, isar,
Grohnde, and Grafenrheinfeld NPPs were given the opportunity to
visit the plants on selected dates.

Strategy
2022: New Challenges and a Robust Strategy

The turbutence of 2022, triggered by the Russia-Ukraine war.
presents the world with major new challenges. High and
significantly more volatile commodity prices, rising interest rates.
inflation, and additional strains on supply chains already disrupted
by the Covid-19 pandemic created uncertainty. As part of a
periodic review., the updated strategic course the EON Group set
in 2021 was critically scrutinized in view of these factors.
Individual countries—and not just their policymakers—want energy

a4

network expansion and modernization in line with the needs of the
energy transition. A significant part of Europe’s renewables
capacity is connected to the E.ON Group's networks. These
networks are the backbone of the enerjy transition, which can
only succeed if they grow at the same rate as the demand for
connections.

The Gy Soluti dering the significant
demand for smart soluhons and products to decarbonize
households and industry—is proving to be solid. This demonstrates
that many people want to take their energy supply into their own
hands. Prosumers are becoming a reality faster than many
expected. E.ON is Europe’s largest provider of energy solutions for
decarbonizing households.

» E.ON's broad range of products and services enables its
customers and partners to displace more than 100 million metric
tons of CO2e annually. %

Alongside the increase in residential demand we also saw greater
demand for decarbonizing entire city districts as part of district
heating and cooling projects. Energy Infrastructure Solutions
("EIS") significantly increased its earnings and investments
compared with the prior year. it also devetoped and acquired
future-oriented projects.

E.ON tntegrated Annual Report 2022
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The sustainable transformation of the energy system is a long-
term task. The current crisis highlights and reinforces the
importance and necessity of change: it must be further
accelerated. After many disputes about the right course. a
consensus is emerging b kers. comp
society—both in Germany and in Europe The European
Commission’s revised targets for speeding up renewables
expansnon will further increase the demand to connect these

0 networks and thus also the need to evpand network
y- The anticipated increase ind d for hydrogen to
replace ooaL gas, and oil in industry is ambitious and will also
require massive investment in energy infrastructure. Al this will
offer us new opportunities and confirms E.ON's strategic course.

and

Connecting Everyone to Good Energy

Europe’s energy transition is irreversible and gaining pace. even
amid the current market situation. This poses new challenges for
the energy industry but also creates tremendous opportunities.
E.ON is 3 leading network opx . and its C i
segments supplies roughly 48 million customers (including
customers in Turkey and of ZSE in Slovakia) with energy. This
positions us better than any other energy company in Europe to
profoundly shape the new era of green energy and toplay a
leading role in the distributed, zero-carbon energy world of the
future. Our strategy has three key components—sustainability.
diyitslization, and growth—on which we will focus our human and
financial resources in the years ahead. Sustainability is the core of
E.ON's strategy and—in all di vill be the guiding
principle for our future actions. E.ON intends to become climate-
neutral itself, and helping our customers reach their climate
targets will be a key growth driver.

Tl

Sustainability .

E.ON's strategy fits seamlessly with the European Union's
decarbonization agenda. Europe’s distribution networks—E.ON's
biggest business—are where the energy transition is happening.
Thei y to upgrade, expand, and digitali

WS r

these networks in the decade ahead are estimated at over €425
billion. This amount of investment is roughly equal to the size of
Belgium's entire economy. The European Commission's desire to
accelerste this expansion will be an additional driver.

» E.ON's strategy fits with two of the EU Green Deal's prog
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climate-neutral by 2050 (and to reduce them by about 50 percent
by 2030). All reductions are relative to 2019. These objectives set
3 course that is both ambitious and viable: a reduction path
consistently aligned with the new energy world in keeping with
E.ON’s strategy. In addition, in 2022 E.ON began to voluntarily
offset itis currently unable to avoid. Offsets help fund

the Horizon Europe program (vhich will provide about €15 billion
of funding through 2027 for. climate, energy. and mobility projects)
and the Innovation Fund (which will mebilize shout €10 billinn
through 2030 to help low-carbon technologies become market-
ready). <

Many of these projects and technologies are relevant for E.ON's
customer solutions business. To seize the growth opportunities in
its core business, E.ON plans to invest a total of roughty €33 billion
from 2023 to 2027, of which around €26 billion will go toward
energy networks and €7 billion toward customer solutions.

» This investment program aims to be fully aligned with the EU
T y:82p of EON's i in its core business
in 2022 fell within the taxonomy's scope; 98 percent of these
investments are green. 4

will be raised

dated

More than half of the funding for these i
through the issuance of green bonds. E.ON’s up

measures that reduce or prevent carbon emissions outside EON's
value chain. E.ON's flagship offsetﬁng'program is its partnership,
hegun in 2021, with the LEAF Caalitinn, which stands for Lowering
Emissions by Accelerating Forest Finance. LEAF offsets help
protect tropical forests and manage them sustainably. E.ON’s
LEAF program will initially run through year-end 2027.

ESG aspects are sy icall bedded into E.ON's central
control and management processes In addition, each business
unit’s manag team is responsible for taking action to
enhance sustainability and to meet the unit’s sustainability targets.
This di alized approach enables the units to contribute to
E.ON's Group-wide targets for issues like climate protection and
corparate governance, while also tailoring their actions to their
specific needs. Each unit has sustainability staff who reinforce
awareness, coordinate projects and initiatives. and monitor
progress toward targets. They share information at regular
intervals with our Sustainability Council and the EON Group’s

gy
thus also caters to capital markets’ increasing interest in

More inf about EON's
disclosures in line with the EU taxonomy for the 2022 financial
year can be found in the “EU Taxonomy” chapter; the “Sustainable
Finance” chapter contains more information about green bonds.

e

Climate protection will be a key driver of EON's future growth.
The Science Based Targets initiative (“SBTi") validated EON's
climate targets in May 2022. They are consistent with keeping
global warming to 1.5° C above preindustrial tevels. in addition,
E.ON pledges for its Scope 1 and 2 emissions to achieve climate
neutrality by 2040 (and to cut Scope 1 and 2 emissions by roughty
75 percent by 2030). E.ON intends for its Scope 3 emissions to be

35

S inability team.

Digitalization

Digitatization will be a cornerstone of the energy landscape of the
future. The transition toward a distributed, volatile, and networked .
energy world will be accompanied by increasing complexity that
can only be managed through comprehensive digitalization.
Digitatization is thus an important lever in E.ON's growth strategy
and the basis for generating additional value in its core business
over the long term. E.ON's objective is to become a fully digitat
energy pany and to fund. tally transform its products.
processes, and services into nhh—dnven and highly networked
solutions. Our digital transformation is proceeding along four
strategic pathways: optimizing internal operations. engaging

E.ON tntegrated Annual Report 2022
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customers and partners, forming and developing new
b areas, and enhancing employees’ digital skills. The

centerpiece of our digital transformation is 3 common technology
platform (*CTP”) for the entire Group. The CTP will serve as the
basis for standardizing and harmonizing all applications in the
E.ON Group necessary for the energy transition. kt will enable us to
develop new digitat energy solutions while maintaining the highest
security standards.

growth businesses that benefit from the sustainable
transformation of various customers and industrial sectors. This
transformation expands E.ON's business opportunities as well.
And our growth strategy fits seamlessty with Europe’s
decarbonization ambitions. Ongoing renewables expansion and the
increasing challenges this poses for power networks will require
investments of more than €425 biltion to transform electricity
distribution networks. The growth in the aggregate energy

Aeidi

The foundation of E.ON One, 3 new y for digital soluti

d: d of EON's groupsis d toincrease by

has enabled the EON Group to pursue the objective of offering and
P IT sol for the external market and E.ON
Group compznles E.ON One's portfolio will be formed by targeted
investments in E.ON's own innovations and in startups. This will
make it possnble to smartify networks and render energy
cor P more ble. E.ON One focuses on three
business areas: grid management. grid operations, and energy
management solutions. These areas form the basis of a successful
energy transition. For example, E.ON One offers a wide range of
energy g 1t solutions that give S more
transparency about their cor ption and ically optimi
consumption and generation.

Energy Networks' top priorities include standardization.
smartification. and the development of new digital solutions, alt
with the highest cybersecurity standards. Digitalization helps E.ON
operate its networks even more efficiently and optimally manage
the growing proportion of power from renewable generating
facilities. The development of digital solutions like smart eMobility
charging solutions as well as new services on both sides of
standard residential meters and smart energy meters are also part
of E.ON's growth strategy.

Growth
EON’scoreb of two seg Energy Ni ks

more than 100 percent between 2020 and 2050. A sustainable
transformation of the economy is necessary for this as well EON
is aiming for earnings growth in both the Energy Networks and
Customer Solutions segments, supported by continual efficiency
improvements. The measures in this area focus primarily on
achieving operational excellence. We are likewise aware that our
growth strategy can only be impt difitis ied by
changes within our orgamzabon such as cuttural change, diversity.
and education. Compreh to propel these changes
are therefore integral to our strategy.

Growth in the Energy Networks Segment

The transition to a new, sustamable and connected energy world
will require considerabl stments in physical and digital assets.
As stated above, this applies above all to the Energy Networks
segment. which is the backbone of a successful energy transition.
Ongoing renewables expansion in particular will require grids to
grow at a similar pace. New network connections and connected
load will increase sharply amid the energy transition owing to

h in behavior. The energy transition alone
ﬂierefore represents an unprecedented growth opportunity for
E.ON, an opportunity that is being further accelerated by the
current developments in Europe’s energy system and momentum
for the energy transition. Consequently. this gmwth will be

and Customer Solutions. E.ON operates power and gas networks
in various regions of Europe and offers a broad range of customer
tuti The two busi 1pl each other amid the

panied by the suitable and sensible digitali of
networks because they are a key oorrponent of E.ON's growth
strategy and a prerequisite for the imp of the energy

and dimate transition in distribution networks. The use of smart-
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grid technology like smart energy meters and smart transformer
stations. the integration of external data, the standardization of
construction and operating processes and the use of 3 central data
platform all offer iderabl L. Where y for
technical reasons and eoonomlcally feasible. E.ON will acquire the
capability to monitor and control its distribution networks across
all voltage levels in order to optimize their operation. Sensors and
smart energy g and control logy will enable real-
time control of distributed generation and consumption.

E.ON's existing gas networks will continue to play an important
role in the transformation of the energy system. Gomg fomard,
E.ON will also, where legally possible and i

make its existing gas networks hydrogen-ready. These
investments will help pave the way toward climate-neutral gas
networks.

E.ON's capabilities along with the above-average efficiency of its
network operations will enable it to lead the necessary
transformation of the energy system. Eight of EON's nine
distribution system operators (*DS0s") in Germany have an
efficiency rating of 100 percent. with three of them eaming a
super efficiency bonus. All E.ON DSOs surpass the industry
average.

This is among the reasons why E.ON is one of Europe’s leading
DSOs. E.ON has a regulated asset base ("RAB") of €36.4 billion,
and its regulated business generates a large share of its EBITDA.
E.ON’s strategic objective is therefore to remain Europe's leading
energy and infrastructure partner. E.ON plans to direct a large
portion of investments during the 2023-2027 planning period
toward network expansion and a variety of netwark projects. The
Eorecast Report contains details about planned investments.

Growth in the Customer Solutions Segment

E.ON’s Customer Solutions segment focuses on the energy
services business and the Energy Infrastructure Solutions ("EIS)
business’s activities in distributed energy.
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The energy services business includes power and gas retail sales.
This is a scalable b model with p ly low capital
requirements and f on private b holds and small and
medium-sized enterprises. EON's objective for this b isto

to achieve additiona! growth and become the preferred

transformation partner for sustainable, innovative energy

solutions. EIS's core business consists of a portfolio of solutions for
bedded power, heat. and cooling plants as well as solutions for

retain its roughly 48 million customers across Europe (including
customers in Turkey and at ZSE in Slovakia) in the long term by
offering them a sustainable energy supply and energy solutions

and thus reducing their envir { footprint and by helping
Europe to reach its energy conservation targets, particularty
residential s gas 1ption. So that this objective can
be achieved at competitive costs, E.ON systematically pursues
digitali . which pe optimal operating efficiency and
perior ¢ isfaction and loyalty (customer relationship
g t) as well as cross-selling opportunities. EON's

solutions business focuses primarily on the Future Energy Home
("FEH"). a portfolio of distributed energy systems for households.
They include sclf-generation of green solar power. energy storage,
heat. and eMobility solutions. The European Commission’s solar
strategy for the EU, which includes the target of doubling Europe’s
solar power capacity by 2025, will serve as an additional growth
driver. The expansion of suitable eMobility infrastructure is
another key strategic priority. The cMobility market is undergoing
change and is characterized by robust growth: at least 15 million
electric vehicles are expected to be registered in Germany by
2030. Charging infrastructure, by contrast. is expanding ata
slower pace. E.ON therefore believes the near term is the time for
rapid growth activities. because all attractive locations for
charging infrastructure will presumably have been allocated in the
years ahead. Our objective is to enlarge our current market
position and become one of Europe’s leading operators of charging
infrastructure by 2030.

#In 2022 E.ON sold 20.417 charging points for residential and
busi! [ s in many European countries. 4

EIS's activities er pass i energy solutions that help
cities, municipalities, and industrial customers achieve their
climate targets cost-effectively. E.ON aims for its E!IS business unit

energy efficiency and decarbonization along with other energy
services. E.ON sees green hydrogen in particular as a key strategic
growth oppartunity in this space over the medium term and has

3 hydrogen b unit to meet industrial customers’
increasing demand for green gases in the future. E.ON assumes
that by 2040 the demand for hydrogen will extend across the
industrial. mability, heat, and electricity sectors. In addition,
hydrogen will play an essential role in the climate-neutral energy
system of the future. in the short term, EON will partner with its
customers to move forward with hydrogen projects that are
atready under way in quintessential industrial regions like the Ruhr
district and, over the medium term, scale up the business unit
internationally. This includes E.ON's strategic partnership with
Australian hydrogen pioneer FF1 to develop ways of importing
Large quantities of green hydrogen to Germany. Our intemational
footprint in Europe gives us an optimal platform for future
hydrogen clusters in the North Sea region. Currently. E.ON is
invotved in over 50 projects along the entire hydrogen value chain
to make green hydrogen available to busi s and
municipalities.

Wliehad

E.ON s thus superbly positioned to propel the energy transition
and satisty the increasing demand for sustainable solutions. All
business units will benefit from robust demand growth for green
power and gas across all sectors (households, transportation,
buildings. and industry).

Commitment to the UN Sustainable Development
Goals

> The United Nations' Sustainable Develop Goals (*SDGs") of
its 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development provide a blueprint
for a better and more sustainable future. Adopted in 2015, the 17
SDGs and 169 subgoals address a wide range of global challenges.
We recognize the SOGs' importance and fully support them. Our
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Management Board und ed this support by issuing a self-
commitment to the SDGs in June 2018. E.ON's core business
activities enable it to play a considerable role in fostering the SDGs
7 (Affordable and Clean Energy). 11 (Sustainable Cities and
Communities). and 13 (Climate Action). All of EON's other
contributions to the UN SDGs can be found in the SDG Index. < |

11 S 13 o
N L > 4
Finance Strategy

The section of the Combined Group Manag 1t Report entitled

Einancial Situation as well as the EON on Capital Markets chapter
contain explanatory information about EON’s finance strategy.

People Strategy

The sections of the Combined Group Management Report entitled
Working Conditions and Diversity and Inclysion contain
explanatoery information about the main components of E.ON's
people strategy as well as statements about diversity at EON. .

Innovation

Innovations as Drivers for Climate-Neutral and
Affoidable Energy Solutions

The energy industry is currently facing a multitude of significant
challenges, while at the same time the transformation of the
energy system is in full swing. In these fast-moving and disruptive
times, EON continues to actively shape change. More than ever,
E.ON sees itself as a thought leader that views change as an
opportunity and that uses innovation as a catalyst for growth.
E.ON is living up to its responsibilities in the current situation in
particular by developing new. innovative products and services
that save energy. reduce carbon emissions, and address the issue
of energy affordability.
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The development of innovations has for years been an integral part
of EON's b and s firmly anchored in the organization. In
addition to the numerous innovation activities in decentralized
organizational units throughout the Group. EON has a central
Innovation team that further developed its 360—degree innovation
approach in 2022. This approach involves d

5 C

leverage synergies and thus to accelerate decarbonization and
electrification.

Progress was made with Stanford University students on satellite-
based classification of building energy efficiency. while the
Usboration with Power to Hydrogen and Simerse Al linked two

in-house as well as working with partners worldwndc' from a wide
range of collaborations with universities. institutions, and

companies to global startups and thought leaders. lt enables EON

to pursue its three innovati j of ly generating
ir developing new business models for its
customers in all opera’nng businesses, and propelling the

devel of disruptive ir tions in which E.ON sees the

potential to set new market standards.

The Continuous Initiation of Projects Ensures that the
Innovation Pipeline Is Always Full

Continuous idea genefatnon swlft validation of new innovation
concepts, and the impler of i ation projects are the
basis for | sful i jon work.

ingty st
gty

E.ON views applied energy research with leading scientific
institutions as a key to climate neutrality. Its long-standing
partnership with the E.ON Energy Research Center (*ERC”) at
RWTH Aachen University is particularly noteworthy in this regard.
In 2022 E.ON placed its focus on the development of new research
programs on the topics of Sustainable Decentralized Energy
Systems and The Future of Heating and Cooling Supply. EON's
network in the academic world extends far beyond its
collaboration with Aachen University and encompasses
intemationa! scientific institutions as well.

In 2022 E.ON further expanded its long-standing North American
network. It uses collaborations such as those with Stanford
University, the Global Sustainable Electricity Partnership ("GSEP®),
and Free Electrons. a leading accelerator. to work with global
partners from these networks to identify electrification trends and

more U.S.-based startups directly to E.ON's core business. To
enable industriat customers reduce their natural gas consumption
by using hydrogen, E.ON is developing pioneering reversible
electrotyzers across a number of E.ON businesses in the Power to
Hydrogen project with four intemnational partners. This new
technology is expected to reduce the cost of producing hydrogen
and of using it flexibty. Simerse Al is helping EON extend its
leading position in the development of & tutions for the
network business. An innovative approach to training artificial
intelligence enables it to test image-based maintenance processes
that use robots and drones to detect and fix defects in critical
utility equipment faster and more effectively.

These are two more solutions implemented as part of Free
Electrons. an accelerator program jointly founded by E.ON and
teading global energy utilities. Together with these partners. E.ON
iniiated more than 20 pilot p'rojects with 15 globally leading
startups in 2022. The accelerator program focuses not only on
collaboration between startups and energy utilities. but also on
direct exchange between industry leaders.

E.ON ded its collaborati Mthstartupsm
Europe as well. One example is Dabbel, a startup that makes an
important contribution toward climate neutrality by optimizing
energy consumgption in buitdings while significantly reducing their
operators’ energy costs. Dabbel's solution enables average energy
savings of 26 percent by optimizing heating. ventilation, and air
conditioning technotogy without installing additional hardware.
E.ON City Energy Sotutions ("CES®) and Avacon in Germany and
E.ON Control Solutions in the United Kingdom worked together
closely in 2022 to test the solution and initiate partnership models.

g
Y

a8

= Contents (Q Search € Back

In addition, the open innovation format of the EON Grid Startup
Challenge, in which all 18 E.ON network companies participated,
yielded seven new pilot projects with startups. Alongside
digitalization, the topics included ecological powerline path
management and the resilience of network infrastructure.
Hamburg-based startup Repath, for example. is conducting a
project with Schleswig-Holstein Netz AG to help identify local
climate risks and design adaptation measures.

New Business Models Secure Future Business and
Pave the Way for Additional Growth

A permanenﬁy changing world. opportunities created by the use of

new ! and our s continually evolving wishes
require an ded approach to inr In addition to
sfully ging its g business. E.ON needs new

business models to provide the basis for its future business.
Sustainability, digitalization, and growth are also the principles
that guide every aspect of E.ON's development of innovations. The
central Ins team's collaboration with EON b units
focuses on identifying needs or the problem to
be solved and developing a viable and promising business model
This enables innovation experts with years of experience to
develop products faster and more efficiently and jointly bring them
to market maturity. In 2022, 17 projects with anticipated sales
totaling €224 million over the next five years were handed over to
E.ON op: g units. Examples of these i include the
Bi-clEVer eMobility project. the Elna energy home solution and a
solution that uses smart heating control technology to-enable
commercial customers to conserve energy.

Bi-clEVer: an Electricity Storage System on Four
Wheels

Electromobility is considered an important building block for the
successful implementation of the energy transition. For this core
area of E.ON's busi itsi ation teams d d 3 new
process that enables bi-directional charging. In 2022 E.ON joined
with BMW to launch a pilot project called Bi-clEVer in the Munich
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area. The project primarily addresses the question of how an
electric vehicle ("EV”) battery, in conj with a ph ttai

S bt 4, > ¢ to provide fully automated control

of the heating system in response to demand in real time. In

system, can be sensibly used as an electricity storage device in
households. Unlike with conventional EV charging. with bi-
directional charging electricity does not flow solely toward the
battery. but can, as needed. also be fed back into the home's
energy network.

Elna Makes Energy Consumption Transparent and
Invites People to Conserve Energy

Another example is the Elna project launched in Sweden in 2022.
Sweden—a European leader in the introduction of smart energy
meters—is considered an ideal market for the launch of such a
product. Elna is an additiona! feature of the My £.ON app for
residential consumers. The new functionality displays a home's
energy consumption in real time. This free smart service provides

ghts and il d dataon h hotd ption in
up to 14 categories, including db

detailed incinh

y appli heat pumps.
washing machines. and EV chargers. In addition, Elna offers many
other options for making energy-consumption decisions that
conserve energy and thus reduce energy costs. After a successful
test phase. E.ON plans to gradually increase the number of
customers in Sweden. Rolling out the service in other European
countries also remains an ambitious goal.

‘Using Artificial Inteliigence to Reduce Gas
Consumption in Existing Buildings
intelligent Heating Control ("ICH") is an ad hoc solution for

addition to delivering cost savings. this innovation builds a bridge
toward dimate-neutral heating.

Scale Hubs Propetl Innovations that Can Set New
Market Standards

The development of disruptive i is much di dat
E.ON. The work of the experts from the central Innovation team
includes developing new business models whose concepts are
based on new technological applications whose degree of maturity
does not yet permit immediate market launch. Some of these
innovations demonstrate ahove-average potential, both in terms of
their commercial promise and their ability to develop new market
standards.

£.ON combines the development of such disruptive business
medels in scale hubs. The Group focuses in particular on propelling
disruptive innovations as part of its innovation portfolio, without at
the same time developing new approaches that call its existing
business into question. '

Innovative Energy Community Pilot Project in Tenerife

The Adeje Verde pilot project that E.ON launched in 2022
represents the first energy community of its kind in Europe. tt uses
aninr pproach to citizen particip to createa
community that enables its residents and local institutions to

‘generate. share, and collectively use renewable energy. The pilot

outdoor-temperature-based heating sy 1s that EON devetoped
and tested in 2022 in collaboration with its partner Lemonbeat.
The solution can reduce the gas consumption and thus the carbon
emissions of a heating unitin an apartment building by up to 30
percent. The ICH system’s effectiveness was demonstrated after
its simply plug-and-play installation in two identical multifamily
dwellings. The system enables property owners to retrofit heating
systems that have not been modernized. The solution’s artificial
intelligence leamns the heating system's characteristics and uses a

project’s obji is to provide all citizens of Adeje with access to
solar energy in their diate neighborhood, L ing role

models for a fast-growing energy community. The Canary Islands
has set the target of meeting all its energy needs with renewables
by 2040. Spain is a pioneer in new energy regulation and thus the
ideat place for a pilot project to serve as a blueprint for Europe-
wide approaches.
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tn October 2022 the Clean Energy for EU Islands Secretariate
recognized Adeje Verde's groundbreaking work by selecting it as
one of three finalists of the #CE4EUIslands Game Changer Award.

The central Innovation team’s 360-degree approach has created
an E.ON-wide innovation platform. It makes its expertise and
experience available to all EEON units and thus serves as a
perpetual innovation engine for the EON Group. transforming
ideas from the drawing board into tangible value for the Company.
The central Innovation team supports both the future of ELON on
its growth and sustainability course, and. in particular, makes the
lives of E.ON customers better. more sustainable, and simpler.

Management Control System

E.ON aims to further drive the st ble path of the Company
and the European energy transition in the digital age. Following

_ our guiding principle “Connecting Everyone To Good Energy.” we

are writing the next chapter of our company history. In doing so.
the long-term and sustainable increase in shareholder value
remains the focus of our strategy. which is geared toward
sustainability, digitalization, and growth.

A uniform Group-wide planning and controlling system is used for
the value-based management of the Group as a whole and its
individual busi This systemn forms the basis for a uniform
mindset Group-wide, while at the same time allowing targeted
steering impulses for individual business units.

E.ON's Management System

Effective the 2022 financial year, adjusted EBITDA i ts
and eamings per share based on adjusted net income ("EPS”) have
been the most significant indicators for managing our aspired
growth. The use of additional key financial and non-financial
performance indicators is intended to ensure that our growthisin
line with the various interests of our stakeholders and enable a
holistic view of our performance. In particular, we focus on our

c 5. employees, shareholders, and bondholders, always ip
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line with our L. social, and gover
responsibility as a leading international energy company. Induding
key non-financial indicators explicitty anchors sustainability
indicators in particutar in the ongoing management of our
businesses.

The following chart summarizes the key performance indicators
used for management purposes.

E.ON's Management System

Mast Significant Key PerformanceIndicaters

« Adjusted EBITDA

+ Investments

« Adjusted eumnings per share based on
adjusted netincome ("EPS®)

& T T

Significant Key Performance Indicators
+ Total shareholder roturn ("TSR”)
- Dividend per share ("DPS")
« Casheconversion rate
« Return on capital employed ("ROCE?)
{ * Debtfactor
» Carbon emissions
] « Proportion of women in management positions
} « Frequency of serious inci ond (“sIFY)
z

+ Net Promoter Score (*NPS")
+ ESG ratings

N e N

+

Other Key Pesformance Indicators

e

S

In addition to the g/ 1t systemn, the p ion system
for the Management Board is also designed to support the
implementation of our strategy and thus the long-term success of

E.ON through the sustainable, long-term, and value-oriented
management of the Group. For this reason, the compensation of

the bers of the Manag Board has also been linked to
the development of selected key performance indicators. The new
Manag Board p systemn has been in place since
January 2022.

Most Significant Key Performance Indicators

With our focus on long-term. sustainable. and value-oriented
growth, the most significant key performance indicators are the
main metrics for internal g and the of our
business development and thus also the comerstones of our
forecast.

Adjusted EBITDA is an eamings figure before interest income and
income taxes that has been adjusted to exclude non-operating
effects. The adjustments include net book gains. certain
restructuring expenses, the mark-to-market valuation of
derivatives, and other non-operating earnings. Therefore, adjusted
EBITDA is the indi of st earnings capacity and the
appropriate key figure for determining the performance of our
business.

Investments are equal to investments in property. plant. and

* equipment. intangible assets. and share investments shown in the

E.ON Group's Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
Investments are the engine for the future growth and digitalization
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the earnings situation from the perspective of the shareholders of
E.ONSE.

‘Significant Key Performance Indicators

In order to suitabty take into their of our
stakeholders in addition to our focus on growth. our management
system also includes other significant key performance indicators.
As 3 customer-oriented company, the ability to acquire new
customers and retain existing ones is crucial to our success. Net
Promoter Score ("NPS") measures customers’ willingness to
recommend E.ON to a friend or colleague. The attractiveness of
our company for investors is reflected in total shareholder retum
("TSR") and dividend per share ("DPS"), which is part of TSR.

We have made sustainability the core of our corporate strategy. In
everything we do. we keep in mind the consequences of our
actions. The progression of cur carbon footprint. the frequency of
serious incidents and fatalities (*SIF7), and the proportion of female
managers are thus significant key performance indicators and part
of our management system. In addition, our ESG ratings are
incorporated into our management system. This provides a
comprehensive assessment of our actions with respect to
environmental. social. and governance matters.

Solid financing of our business activities is of great importance to
realize our aspired long-term and sustainable growth in line with
the fulfillment of our financial ambitions. For this reason, cash-

of E.ON's business as well as decarbonization. As a reflection of

ion rate, which is anindicator of E.ON’ ability to transform

our strategy. they therefore continue to be a key indicator for
managing our activities.

Adjusted earnings per share ("EPS") is equal to adjusted net
income divided by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding in the financial year. In addition to operating earnings.
depreciation and amortization, interest income. income taxes, and
non-controlling interests are inctuded and likewise adjusted to
exclude non-operating effects. This allows a holistic assessment of

operating eamings into cash inflows, and debt factor. whichis a
proxy for our capital structure and ratings. are significant key
figures in our management system. In addition. ROCE is inctuded in
the management system as a key performance indicator to assess
the efficiency of capital employed.

Other Key Performance Indicators

Alongside the performance indicators described above. other
financial and non-financial indicators play a role in the success of

E.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022
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our business and our corporate responsibility. Operating cash flow.

power and gas wheeling vol sales vo! aswell as
selected employee-related information are examples of other key
performance indicators.

4 €.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022



Combined Group Management Report

and

i > and Society

< About this Report - Corporate Profile 2 Climate
- Govemance - Sustainable Finance - Business Report

- ForecastReport
3 C

< Risks and Chances Report

3 Internat Control System < D ing T:

Climate Protection and Environmental
Management

Climate Protection
GRI 3-3, GRI 305

Climate change and ass d envi | damage pose a
serious threat to people and nature. The use of conventional
energy results in the emission of greenhouse gases ("GHG").
Renewable and tow-carbon energy generation along with efficient
energy use play a key role in reducing emissions and thus limiting
global warming. The current geopolitical challenges to securing
Europe’s energy supply are not making this demanding task any
easier. The transition to a low-carbon economy thus requires more
joint efforts by all energy producers and consumers. This transition
period poses a challenge to energy suppliers’ competitiveness. But
it also offers an opportunrty to expand their business. Many
countries. and p are already focusing on
climate-friendly energy generation and energy-efficiency
measures to achieve their carbon-reduction targets. E.ON’s
strategic focus on customer solutions for the efficient use of
energy and smart energy networks fully atigns its business model
with these global trends.

E.ON’s Approach.
Distribution networks like E.ON's are the backbone of the energy
transition: they integrate r bl ducers and

: . and P energyﬁowsmhnewr&meeds

Our solutions help cus‘tcmers of all kinds use energy more
ly. pt their ownr ble or low-carbon energy,
and thus reduce their carbon footprint. tn short, climate protection
is an integral part of E.ON's business model and corporate
governance. We want our business activities to help combat

climate change, improve peopte’s lives, and create a future worth

!iving. For ple, we support p and vities in
ducing their carbon emi and g their eMobility
chargmg infrastructure.

E.ON wants to shrink its own environmental footprint as well.
Since 2004, the Company has disclosed the annual carbon
emissions from its power and heat generation and from other
business activities not directty re!ated to generation. These include
upstream and d s d with EON’s
business activities. E.ON calculates emissions using the globatly
recognized Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard ("GHG Protocol”) issued by the World
Resources Institute ("WRI") and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Devetopment ("WBCSD"). The E.ON Management
Board updated the Company's climate targets in 2020. To achieve
them, we have defined specific actions to reduce our emissions in
all three scopes of the GHG Protocol (see “Goals and Performance
Review" betow). We use the Corporate Value Chain (Scope 3)
Accounting and Reporting Standard to compile our Scope 3
emissions. In addition, E.ON’s 2021 Annual Shareholders Meeting
approved a new compensation system for the Management Board.
Under the system. one quarter of M Board bers’
long-term incentive will reflect the degree to which the Company
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In addition., in late 2021 E.ON adopted an Environmental
Pr jon Guideline. Inf ion about it can be found in the
Environmental Management chapter.

Two other HSE policies that are more specific in nature—the HSE
Function Policy and the HSE People Guideline—took effect back at
the beginning of 2018. The Function Policy defines HSE roles,
ponsibilities. manag pproaches and tools, and minimum
requirements for the entire organization. it empowers the HSE
division to our units’ pl with the obligation to
have an environmental management system certified to ISO
14001 or the Eco-Manag Audit Scheme ("EMAS"). In
addition, the Function Policy defines HSE standards for incident

I It thus repl. and updates the standards
stipulated in previous company policies. The HSE People Guideline
goes into greater detail, underlining the importance of

envir | and climat: 1 and definil speetﬁctasks.
Our Code of Conduct eontmns general HSE rules with which all
must

achieves its sustainability targets. The purpose is to further embed

ESG cts like reducing carbon ions into how E.ON runs its
business.
Guidelines and Policies

In October 2021 E.ON revised its Health, Safety, Environment and
Climate Protection Policy Statement. It clarifies that

ploy oLy

Organization and Responsibilities

The Group's Sustainability department took the lead in developing
the Group-wide climate-protection targets. It also monitors
progress toward them (see “Goats and Performance Review”
below). The units are supported in their decarbonization efforts by
their HSE team and our wider HSE organization, which helps

il { and climate pr justas p t health design energy-efficiency measures and shares ideas and best
and gfety are mtegral to E.ON's business operations. E.ON practices. This setup has enabled E.ON to make progress toward
{ and climate pr important and its company-wide reduction targets for direct and indirect

lrrtegral management tasks. The policy blig E.ON issions since the targets were adopted.

to tal and climate pr tion in all business

decisions. E.ON’s promise to use the best-possible technologies E.ON has sy d the gement of climate-related risks
and pr inits busi pr will reduce its as well In 2020 we further embedded climate-risk reporting into
environmental impact and enh its energy efficiency. in Group-wide risk management. More information can be found in

addition, it commits E.ON to comply with all health, safety. and

. environment ("HSE") laws and regulations and defines the

appropriate management systems for this (IS0 45001. ISO 14001
and IS0 50001).

the Risks and Chances Report. In addition, our reporting is guided
by the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related
Disclosures ("TCFD*). This can be seen in the “Other Information®
section.
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in 2022 the Sustainability department was incorporated into the
Strategy. S bility, and | tion division in order to
integrate sustainability and climate protection even more closely
into the Group’s overall strategy.

The principles of good oorporate governance guide E.ON's

ponsible and value t. The focus is on
efficient collaboration b the M Board and the
Supervisory Board. transparent disclosures, and appropriate risk
management. The clear organization of bility and activiti
ensures that everyone involved works together efficientty and that

we continually improve our performance. Information about
E.ON's progress toward its dimzte.tzrgets is first presented to the
Chief Sustainability Officer and Sustainability Council. The Chief
Sustainability Officer, who chairs the council, reports to the EON
Management Board about the progress achieved on a regular
basis. The council met twice in 2022.

Specific Actions
In October 2021 E.ON adopted an ESG Reporting Manual that
took effect in December 2021. The manual’s detailed descriptions
and requirements instruct the units how to compilé and report
ESG key performance indicators ("KPis"). E.ON then used the
manual’s climate-related KPis to develop a Group-wide carbon
management plan that breaks down the Group-wide climate
tdrgets to the business units. Its purpose is to mieasure progress
towards these targets separately for each of E.ON's business units,
factoring in the characteristics of their particular business, their
strategic ambitions, and the climate policies of the country or

ies where they op The plan refl E.ON's Qeneral
management approach: the Group sets the strategic course and
govemance framework white the units have broad operational

hority. The carbon nt plan took
effectin the ﬂurd quarter of 2022.
> COP is one of the largest i ional ions of i ]
thatindi dently assess the parency and quality of

companies’ climate reporting. E.ON has reported data on its carbon

emissions to COP since 2004. In 2022 CDP again gave EONan A
rating for tackling climate change: this rating recognizes the
Company's leading role in climate protection. E.ON is therefore
among the best 286 that achieved an A rating out of nearly 15,000
that were d. E.ON's der ble actions have made it one
of the world's leading companies in environmental ambition.
action, and transparency. -

tn addition, in 2021 (published in 2022) CDP recognized E.ON once
more as a Supplier Engagement teader. E.ON is thus among the

top 2 percent d for supplier engag on climate
change. ¢«
Under E.ON'’s holistic climate strategy. decarb

reflect a clear hierarchy: avoidance and reduction of emissions
have the highest priority. E.ON primarity uses emissions
certificates to offset those emissions that are currently
unavoidable. All of EON's offsets by means of certificates are
completely voluntarily and in addition our climate targets.

The Company funds measures to avoid or eliminate emissions
outside its own value chain by means of offsets and corresponding
emissions certificates. The iated proji are often| din
developing and emerging countries. EON uses offset certificates
to offset emissions at the product level and does not factor the
amounts offset into its own carbon footprint or the KPls collected
for its own climate targets.

At the same time, we are aware that carbon offsets will play a role
in reducing emissions in the long term. The process can be used to
offset a small portion of ini Vol ymrbon
markets and the purchase of h:ghly reputable certificates are
becoming even more important. That is wiry E.ON developed a
comprehensive strategy for offsetting carbon dioxide emissions
from 2021 onward.

= Contents (Q Search & Back

» More details on our carbon offset strategy are described in the
publication entitled “On course for net-zero~Supporting paper for
E.ON's decarbonization strategy and climate-related disclosures.”<

A key element of this strategy is E.ON's partnership with the LEAF
Caoalition. which has been in place since 2021. LEAF, which stands
for "Lo by Acce! g Forest finance.” is the
largest private-public initiative against the deforestation of tropical
rainforests. Participants include the Norwegian, British. American,
and South Korean governments and more than 20 companies.
LEAF's offset certificates aim to finance the protection of these
forests and to support sustainable management approaches that
closely involve policymakers and local stakehold, '

e Eri
g &r

Goals and Performance Review

E.ON completed its strategic transformation in just six years. It
went from being a traditional energy provider to being a'focused
operator of energy networks and energy infrastructure as well as
provider of innovative customer solutions. The transformation
began in 2014 with the decision to exit fossil-fueled power
generation and global commodity trading. In the interim we also
took other important steps to reduce our direct and indirect
emissions. In addition, in 2020 the E.ON Management Board set
ambitious new climate targets that are described below. Alongside
these targets. the Company developed KPls that are relevant for
control purp: they are used. among other things.
to calculate the long-term compensation for Management Board
members.

manag:

In May 2022 the Science Based Target initiative ("SBTi") confirmed
that E.ON'’s climate targets are consistent with the Paris
Agreement’s 1.5°C target. This means that E.ON's planned
emissions reductions contribute to limit global warming to 1.5°C
relative to p ial levels. To this, we plan to reduce
our Scope 1. 2, and 3 emissions by at teast 50 percent by 2030
relative to a 2019 baseline.

E.ON Integrated Annua! Report 2022
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> E.ON’s SBTi targets are explained in more detail in our publication ~ Progress and Measures

00 course for net-zeco—Supgorting paper for LON's Carbon Reporting According to the GHG Protocol
. N ) B

decahonization sualeqy and dimate-elated disdlosures. < E£.ON calculates its emissions using the globally recognized
WRI/WBCSD GHG Protoco! for the seven GHGs covered by the
Kyoto Protocol-carbon dioxide ("CO2"). methane ("CHa"). nitrous
oxide ("N20). hydrofluorocarbons {"HFCs"). perfluorocarbons
("PFCs"). sulfur hexafluoride ("SFs") and also nitrogen triftuoride
("NF3"). COz is by far our biggest GHG. Other GHGs like SFg and
CHe contribute to E.ON's climate impact. But they account for a
much smaller share of our GHG emissions than CO2. The Global
Warming Potential ("GWP”) indicates how much GHGs affect
global warming over 3 period of time compared with CO2. All GHG
emissions can be expressed as CO; equivalents (*COz¢") and

E.ON’s climate targets go beyond SBTi requirements for the 1.5°C
target. On the one hand, E.ON intends, by reducing its own GHG
emissions, to become climate-neutral by 2040: our reduction path
for our Scope 1 and 2 emissions therefore foresees reducing these
emissions by 75 percent by 2030 and by 100 percent by 2040. On
the other. we aim to reduce our Scope 3 emissions by 50 percent
by 2030 and by 100 percent by 2050. Both reduction paths are
lative to a 2019 baseline. Scope 3 emissions occur primarily
during the generation of the power E.ON purchases and resells and
during the use of the gas E.ON sells. They account for most of

E.ON’s Group-wide carbon footprint. therefore be accounted together.

The adoption of our dimate strategy set in motion actions to help The GHG Protocol deﬁ.nes thl:e? scopes (Scopes 1 to 3) for GHG
us achieve the af <oned di targets for 2030, 2040, accounting and reporting. This improves transparency and

and 2050 and thus to support Europe’s energy transition. E.ON P’°Y‘des gu{dan.ce for different types of climate policies and
systematically monitors its progress toward these targets. Itis business objectives.

important to remember that year-on-year comparisons of energy
consumption can be affected by temporary fluctuations caused by
weather pattemns and other factors. A period of several years is
necessary to determine whether E.ON's actions are effective and
where we stand with regard to our targets. Since 2016 we
therefore assess the trend in more detail every three years. The
trend indicated that so far the reduction rate is in line with the
forecasts. Along with the adoption of the afor ioned carbon
management plan in 2022 we refined this process by setting
reduction rates for our individuat business units as well. The units
have to conduct controls on an annual basis so that we can see
more exactly whether we are making progress along the
prescribed path. In addition, each unit has the authority to pursue
its own reduction targets that go beyond the target for EON as a
whole.
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E.ON's Carbon Footprint by GHG Protocol Scope
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Scope 1 are direct GHG emissions from fuels busted in
sources that we own or control. such as E.ON’s power and heat
plants and vehicle fleet. They also include fugitive methane

emissions from our gas distribution networks.

Scope 2 are indirect GHG emissions from the generation of
electricity that the Company purchases to power its buildings.
operations. and electric vehicles or that are classified a5 line losses
in its power distribution networks. These emissions do not
physically occur at E.ON's facilities but rather at the facility where
the electricity is generated. This is why power distribution losses
are classified as Scope 2 but gas distribution tosses as
Scope 1 emissi Emi: attributable to line losses are lower
ingrid with lots of r bles feed-in. In line with the
GHG Protocol, we calculate Scope 2 emissions using a location-
basedmeﬂloda.ndamaﬁ(et based method. For its own

d g E.ON uses the figure determmed

mix. The market-based method yields a
differem figure because it is based on the contractually
attributab! ion mix of the C 1y’s electricity suppliers.
However, the effort required to identify every single provider that
feeds electricity into each of E.ON’s networks woutd be
considerable. We therefore use the emission factor of each
country’s residual generation mix. In most cases. this factor is
significantly higher than the factor of the national generation mix.
Line losses accounted for approximately 3 percent of the pnwer
E.ON distributed in 2022.

Scope 3 are indirect emissions that occur upstream and
downstream along E.ON's value chain. They result primarily from
the generation of the electricity the Company purchases and
resells to its customers and the use of the gas sold to them.

Scope 3 atso includes the emissi ttributable to the prod

by the lomon—based meﬂ\od. which is based on the

and p: of the goods and services E.ON purchases. In line

45
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with the GHG Protocol. since 2020 we have divided our emissions
from power and heat generation into emissions from “plants
owned and operated” (Scope 1) and “plants owned but leased to
and operated by lessee® (Scope 3). The purpose is to enhance
transparency.

Since E.ON removed large-scale fossil-fueled power generation
from its generation portfolio. it has procured power mainly from
wholesale markets where the source of generation is often not
traceable or information about the source is not reliable. When
primary data are unavailable or of insufficient quality, the GHG
Protoco! rect ds calculating by using secondary
data. such as industry-average data or government statistics. We
therefore calculate the Scope 3 emissions from the generation of
this power by using the official national emission factors of the
countries in which we purchase power resold to end-customers.
Furthermore, we also use the market-based method to calculate
the emissions of power resold to end-customers. The Company
can actively influence this figure by selling green power. This
figure is therefore relevant for management control purpose.

Our direct and indirect COze emissions totaled 88.84 miltion
metric tons in 2022: of these. 3 percent were direct Scope 1
emissions, and 97 percent were indirect Scope 2 and 3 emissions.
Scope 1 emissions decreased by 22 percent compared with the
pfekus year. indirect emissions by around 20 percent. The

er figures forr control purposes were
used for these calculations: location-based Scope 2 emissions and
market-based Scope 3 emissions.
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{Scope1 GRI305-1 . ] Fugitive emissions at EON consist predominantly of methane
E.ON's 2022 Carbon Footprint Toto! 0O, equivolents in from leaks in gas infrastructure as well as leaks of sulfur
million metric cons® 2022 2021 2020 hexafluoride (SFg) and coolants used in energy distribution
N Power and heat equipment. Their GWP is very high, which is reflected in their hi
Total CO, Equivalents in Million Metric Tons oy 1904 2175 2198 ﬁ!.‘]l\l:yp5 ery higi igh
Scape 1 Fugitive emissions 088 144’ 165 gures.
cope I 2.88 Company-owned vehides 0.05 004 0.04
GRI205-2 . — e § . .
i Foels combusor® 005 005 008 > However, E..ON.s ﬁ'lgltxve emissions are quite small in prop.omon
Scope 2! l 138 - 288 a7 302 to the quantity distributed and used by customers: in 2022 just .
GR1 305-2 N 0.3 percent of methane and 0.18 percent of SFg were lost. «
Seope 3t : 258 'mmgwpmmdmnmw[m;;:mmmw ) N )
GRY 3053 —l A0 ocxordanca with the GH Protoca, rom 2018 omward, e Sors from powes ard hest Going forward, we want to reduce fugitive emissions by
"t disded o o e e v ing leaks and continually improving and modernizing our
,m:b::r ! e and maln Aidmpily gas and power networks.
. rencabics facliics ard uxear power swton. .
o o GG ot e N [Scope2 GRi305-2 ]
E.ON's Scope 1 emissions amounted to 2.88 million metric tons of ~ *This ;dm-c.uo 2878 6f €05 from biocesic emissions, in Totwt CO; equivalents in million metric
COze in 2022. They were thus significantty lower than the prior- *This figure o inctude 28098 0, in tons! 2022 2021 2020
5 3,71 milli 5 i accordance with the GHG Prosocol. R . Power distibution lossas (location-
Z::'r :lg:r‘e tt) 3.71 million mettenc;::nsl of COze.'Thef degease is f""’zfm e, O vt o QlEs phi 314 267 .19
mnty e {0 more cal g tor the P G swibution tosses {market-
calculation of CHe emissions in conjunction with our gas teg e v than . 5.52 5.56 5.83
distribution networks. In addition. there was a reduction in owned mmmmm o bradoces ol Purchased powes (location-based) 0.25 023 0.30
generation of power and heat. which - and allows for n: retwork Purchased power (market-based) 0.31 017 025
for EON of 2.0) wers introduced twnughost the Compny, Total (location-based) 338 3.90 449
¥To hest buldings. Combustion of besting tochnical oquipment . = — —
2020 oeward. Tota! (market-based) 5.83 573 6.09
The extornat olot i s thy Enery.
Emissions from power and heat generation were primarily due to gndtho Associstion of kg 'f;m’ ‘el for speci i coions
our combined heat and power ("CHP") plants. In 2020 we made A e ; e reciorn &
our di e of Scope 1 ions from power and heat v i 5 .
generation at leased plants more transparent. We now report periivinhnpinr-yey b ool from the
emissions from downstream plants leased by us as Scope 3 ;n.... btk ns v o green
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emissions. These are plants that we installed at customers’
premises and that they operate as lessees for their own needs.
This disti shows that emi from our own plants are
higher than emissions from leased plants. For heat, 62 percent of
emissions come from owned generation plants and 38 percent
from leased plants. For power. 40 percent of emissions come from
owned power plants and 60 percent from leased plants.

We recorded location-based Scope 2 emissions of 3.38 million
metric tons of COze in 2022. The lower figure compared with the
previous year resulted from the greener generation mix in our
markets.
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E.ON's investments to maintain its networks maintenance help. I Scope3_GRI305-3 . ; e . . J
reduce line losses as well. E.ON's approach depends on the type of R . e tonst 2022 2021 2020
loss. Technical losses can be reduced through network . o1 €O, e sddm '"_‘ s
optimization. For this purpose. we are upgrading our networks _Elﬂﬂm—-bmf 40.48%4 515524 6127
using smart-grid technology (more information can be found in the power sold to end v »
Security of Supply chapter). This enables the lines and _{market-based)’ . 42.51%4 54.75%¢ -
- -2 3 .
transformers to adapt—in many cases automatically—to the actual & of nzuaral 93’_“’":“’ end 35'536 44153 "r’a,
production and consumption in a given grid segment. H; A o 'ws od :; ods and = enoe po—r z,eo' 3'32m X 3'33"
technicat losses can only be reduced to a certain extent owing to P mgene = feased assens) A6 ﬁ ;—:‘s’
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the physical attributes of power Commercial result
N phy1 from theft. po grids. ercial losses resu Upstream processes of leased assets (l2ased vehicles) 0.02 002 0.03%
pr tly fromthe Business travel 0.00% 0.0014 18 .00V
Yotat (location-based) 80.55 100.38 107.96
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Scope 3 cmiss = sdd toend- to our revidential and B2B qustomon), sccomding to the GHG Scope 3 protucdl, The
emissiors ibast v ndthe under o S¢ops 1 and Scope 2 eméssions eccordingly.
Rruchsdes Shovakia, in which we harve 8 48 percant stake.
Aackudes a2 EV charging points owned by EON and occessible by the oubfic.
Snchdos capizal goods.
% rom 2022 omward emiszions > .
s . Gmatzty 55 mezric tons of CO>.
in accondance with the GHG Protocd, from 2019 onward, emigtions from i drvided i zions fro by E.OM (Scape izsions from
©, by, N 17, Qo our emissions and malics progress toward Gur GIGots More 7ensparent.
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E.ON reduced its location-based Scope 3 emissi which always  greenh gas ("GHG") emissions and thus also plays an

account for the largest share of its total carbon footprint—

to 80.55 million metric tons in 2022, We rccorded a significant
reduction of almost 20 percent year on year. mainly because of the
electricity and gas we scll to end-customers. The factors again
were portfolio streamlining among our B2B customers, mild
weather in nearly all of E.ON's regional markets, and crisis-driven
energy conservation. The market-based figure for power recold to
end-customers declined even more—by more than 12 million tons
of CO2e—relative to the prior year. One of the reasons is that we
sold more green power (the Sustainable Products and Services
chapter contains more information about our green power
products). ’

Environmental Management @)
GRI 3-3. GRI 302 '
E.ON assumes responsibility for preserving the natural

environment and strives to minimize its business activities
environmental impact. The focus of envir |

important role in environmental management, which is a key
component of E.ON's operational heatth, safety. and

vtal ("HSE") g Combining these topics
underscores that E.ON is equally committed to protecting people
and the environment. In addition, bringing together envirenmental
and encrgy management as well as occupational health and safety
in 3 joint HSE organization enables us to leverage synergies
because the approaches and systems for achieving their objectives
are fundamentally similar,

E.ON's environmental management is guided by the precautionary
principle endorsed by the United Nations, and E.ON has explicitly
supported the UN Global Compact’s ten principles since 200S. In
addition, EON is working to define its own environmentat
standards, such as ecological corridor g {see "Specific
Actions” below for more information). in order to set a strategic
course for the entire Group and to guide the units’ environmental
protection activities. We developed an Environmental Protection
Guideline in late 2021 that describes E.ON's holistic approach to

4 w
however. has shifted significantly over the past seven years. The
transformation into the new E.ON—a specialist for infrastructure
and customer solutions to decarbonize the energy world—
substantially changed E.ON's asset portfolio and environmental
footprint. E.ON operates distribution networks in seven European
countries. Environmental management therefore placesa

envir 1 pr jon. tt was published in the first quarter of
2022 and the foll five we care for
ecosystems, we steer our org: towards yster
protection, we maximize our impact. we set clear targets. we
engage for environmental protection.

9

E.ON only wants to do business with companies that share its

particular emphasis on pi ing and pr ing natural habi
and the diversity of ecosystems and species in the vicinity of this
network equipment. In addition. we aim to conserve energy and
other resources at our facilities and offices and to comply with all
ir ional and national envi | laws and regulations at

all times.

E.ON's Approach

We use our energy management system to continually look for
opportunities to optimize the Group's energy consumption and the
energy efficiency of our processes. It enables us to reduce

to environmental protection. Consequently. our
suppliers and contractors must commit to complying with our
environmental standards, and our HSE Policy stipulates that they
must have a certified environmental management system in place
(the next section, “Guidelines and Policies,” contains more
information).

comr

Guidelines and Policies
Depending on existing risks as well as their scale and complexity.

E.ON's HSE Policy requit s to provide evid of the
use of HSE g Y that meet international
48
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standards. All E.ON units—except for very small units and those
with non-material environmental risks—must have an
environmental management system that is certified to 1SO 14001
or validated by means of the Eco-Management and Augdit Scheme
(EMAS)

» Atyear-end 2022, 75 percent of E.ON employees worked in
business units that met this requirement. «

In accordance with the German Energy Services Act (German
abbreviation, “EDL-G"). E.ON has atso introduced iSO 50001
certification in units that already have an HSE management
system.

» Atyear-end 2022, 67 percent of E.ON employees worked in
business units with 1ISO 50001 certification. <

E.ON measures and analyzes the energy consumption of facilities.
vehicle fleets. and office buildings at all of these units. The data
help us identify savings opportunities and take cost-effective
measures to improve energy effidency. All units without 1ISO
50001 certification conduct energy audits in accordance with DIN
EN 16247 under the EDL-G in G y and analogous legislatio
in other European countries (more information on measures and
guidelines can be found in the chapters entitled Climate Pratection
and Occupational Health and Safety).

In 2021 E£.ON began compiling a manual an ecological corridor
g Wt ists of r standards for ecological
vegetation management solutions under 110 kV high-voltage
overhead power lines. We intend to extend this approach to all
Group-owned distribution system operators in Europe by 2029
(“Specific Actions” below contains more information).

Oréanization and Responsibilities

The Group’s Sustainability department played 3 leading role in
developing pany-wide dimate protection targets and has since
then been monitoring progress toward them. E.ON's units are

E.ON Integrated Annual Report 2022
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responsible for taking steps to reduce their emissions and those
caused by their business operations. They are supported in these
efforts by their Sustainability and HSE teams and our wider HSE
organization, which help design energy-efficiency measures and
share ideas and best practices. The Climate Protection chapter
contains information on E.ON's new carbon management plan,
which took effect in the third quarter of 2022.

Specific Actions

E.ON employees and managers are required to report
enviranmental incidents. They use an [T application called PRISMA
(Platform for Reporting on Incident and Sustainability
Management and Audits) for this purpose (the Occupational
Health and Safety chapter contains more information on PRISMA
and E.ON’s incident management).

E.ON has taken several steps to improve the energy efficiency of
its facilities in Germany. These include installing sensor-controlled
LED lighting in buildings and parking garages and reducing the

* energy consumption of ventilation and air-conditioning systems.
We also adjust the heat in our bui!dmgs to demand {the Egergy
Affordability ch more i about energy
conservation). Nhny E.ON facilities in Germany organize these
measures by means of an energy management system {"EnMS?)
certified to SO S0001. 1SO 50001 is an mtenmhoml standard
destgned to enable organizations to thy their
energy efficiency. As part of the EnMS, the energy team sets
annual targets and conducts systematic audits to monitor the
effectiveness of the measures taken to achieve them. it also

ducts an annual g t review, which is audited by an

accredited certification organization. These mechanisms confirmed
the EnMS’s effectiveness.

In 2017 E.ON began offering its employees in Germany incentives
to embrace eMobility. They-include attractively priced leasing
contracts for electric vehicles ("EVs®), at-home charging points,
and certified renewable power tariffs, which enable employees to
charge their EVs with clean energy. E.ON's Car Policy for the

i
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procurement of company cars and leased unambig
supports the use of all-electric and hybrid vehicles. More
information on our eMobility efforts can be found in the

‘Sustainabte Products and Services chapter.

For projects to build new power lines, gas pipelines, and other
large industrial facilities with a foreseeable environmental impact,
E.ON conducts an environmental impact assessment during the
development phase to obtain construction and operating permits.
We also frequently monitor a facility's operation to verify that the
initial assessment was correct. In addition, E.ON maintains an
ongoing dialog with local stakeholders and interested parties on
numerous environmertal issues.

In 2022 E.ON anatyzed the extent to which its business model
impact biodiversity. The analysis encompasses E.ON's own
operations and its suppliers’. Our aim was to understand the
positive and negative impact of our business on biodiversity and to
use the findings to design targeted measures. The analysis took
into it the draft f rks currently being developed by
the Science Based Targets Network ("SBTN") and the Taskforce on
Nature-retated Financial Disclosures ("TNFD®). On the one hand.
we reviewed how the energy sector affects ecosystem services
and how dependent various production processes are on such

Impact Analysis on Ecosy Services

| impact on Natural Capital
Production Use of terrestrial Greenhouse gas
processes ‘ecosystems ‘Water use emissions
Hydopower | Veryhigh | Bveryhigh High
Biomass energy K High High
Heat and power a Very high i
" ery hig| High

o formtion duo to insufficient data on the ENCORE databass.

On the other hand, we located setected E.ON facilities to better
understand the' importance of spatially specific geodata for the
assessment of biodiversity risks. The analysis of geographic data
from a total of 133 selected facilities {our own and key suppliers)
revealed that 20 percent of them are located in the immediate
vicinity of one to two key biodiversity areas. In addition, various
E.ON facilities are located in German nature conservation areas.
The study also ranks the ten facilities with the greatest biodiversity
impact. E.ON wants to use the findings to develop additional
measures to further promote biodiversity in its business.

E.ON also takes steps to protect wildlife and landscapes and to
biodiversity. Bird safety. for example, is an important

services. This included assessing the risk for EONif an Y
service was lost somewhere along the value chain. In detail. the
impact analysis on Y services the production
processes of EON'’s operations, regardless of their share of EON's
total business. The results are as foll the production pr

with the highest impact are energy from biomass, hydropower,
thermal power plants (percentage of taxonomy-eligible capex), and
nuclear power plants ("NPPs®; percentage of total asset book

. value). EON is currently in the process of dismantling its NPPs.

Onty Isar 2 NPP will remain in operation until mid-April 2023 asa’
resutt of a decision by the German government.
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issue for many of EON distribution system operators ("DSOs").
Their activities in this area include installing nest platforms for
storks, eagles. falcons, and other bird species. Many business units
have also | 9 proj In addition, E.ON has set
upa Group-«mde digital platform for biodiversity and

envir jon proj to improve the visibility of the
issue and the exd\ange of information about it.
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already in place for around 5,600 hectares of forest? in Germany.
is now being extended to all E.ON service termritories in Europe. We
plan to design specifi L gerent plans for every
hectare of farest by 2029 and to invest a figure in the double-digit
million range to implement them. Our aim is to ensure intact
ecosystems and greater biodiversity along the 13,000 kilometers
of our high-voltage lines. which is roughly the area of around
100.000 soccer fields. .

In late 2020 E.ON founded the E.ON Envir | Network

¥ EEN') in Gerrnany The EEN is a forum for sharing information on
1 issues. envir ntat g
sustamablhty as well as related legislation, standards. and
benchmarks. It brings together experts from our network and
customer solutions business, works closely with the HSE and
Sustainability teams, and meets on a quarterly basis. in most cases
virtually. Since its inception, the EEN's reach across the Group has
expanded continually. In addition to the issues addressed in 2021
~commercial waste, ISO 14001 environmental assessment, and
networking of biodiversity and environmental-protection
projects—one of the steps the EEN took in 2022 was to create a

| envir nent.

5 C

amajor incident (category 4), the unit at which it occurred reports
it directly to the E.ON Manag Board ber r ible for
the respective unit and to Group HSE within 24 hours.

E.ON has been a member of EV100 since 2018. EV100 is 5 global
initiative that has been led by the Climate Group. a non-profit

gant It brings to itted to
accelerating the transrtmn to EVs and to making electric transport
the new normal by 2030. In 2022 the initiative made more
progress toward this goal. The number of members increased to
more than 120.

panies

> Collectively. they have committed to operating more than 515
million EVs by 2030 and have so far put more than 200.000 EVs
on the streets. They are also expanding the charging infrastructure
at their facilities. Over 20.000 charging points had been instatled
by year-end 2022. «

E.ON has supported EV100 by instatling more than 3,400 charging
points for employees, guests. and customers at its facilities,
including around 1.200 in Germany alone. In addition, all EON

working group for the Federal Soil Pre and Contaminated
Sites Ordinance and the new Substitute Building Materials
Ordinance. It addresses the requirements that our business units
must meet as a result of the ordinance’s amendment. E.ON also

hicles under 3.5 metric tons and at least half of those between
3.5 and 7.5 metric tons are to be electric by 2030. provided this is
technically feasible and cost-efficient. In 2022 we therefore
revised the EON Car Policy to make our vehicle fleets even more

and envir lly friendly. We also increased the

has a European EEN, which brings E.ON colleagues
outside Germany. Both forums met several times in 2022. We
intend to expand these networks in the years ahead and transform
them into Group-wide information-sharing platforms.

Goals and Performance Review

The E.ON Management Board is informed about serious

envir ! incidk (category 3 in our Standard on Incident

M ) by means of thly reports from HSE and periodic
cansultztwns with the Senior Vice President for HSE. In the case of

The chage relative t the prior yoar
that erharco data acaxscy.

number of our electric vehicles by 963 to a total of more than
3.841 at year-end.? In addition, E.ON will continue to install
charging infrastructure at its facilities. The aim is also to encourage
our customers to switch to eMobility.

Tnckudes bybrid whides.

= Contents (Q Search & Back

Progress and Measures (x)
Energy Consumption within the Organization
GRI 302-1

E.ON consumed 109 million GJ of energy in 2022. 145 million GJ
less than in 2021. The main reason was that the nuclear power
plants operated by PreussenElektra ("PEL") produced less
electricity.

Savings Delivered by Emission-reduction Projects

E.ON regularly carries out projects to reduce its own GHG
emissions. In 2022 these projects delavered over 61,000 metric
tons of COe savings. The to them included
upgrading the boilers in the plants of our district heating business,
converting from naturat to green gas. and reducing pipeline
pressure in our gas networks prior to construction or maintenance
in order to prevent fugitive methane emissions.

Carbon Emission Reductions Achieved
through Targeted Projects

Buitding ation
reductioms

n
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n
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Avoiding and Recycling Waste

U
E.ON always tries to avoid creating waste and, when this is not
feasible, to recover as much of it as possible. If neither avoidance
nor recovery is possible, we ensure, in accordance with legal

o,

Hazardous Waste (MetricKilotons)

requirements, that waste is disposed of correctly and resp
E.ON'’s operating b generates h dous and non-
hazardous waste, as does the retirement of some assets, such as
the dismantling of the Company's NPPs in Germany.

Non-hazardous Waste (Metric Kilotons)

< 50 400 450
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E.ON's total amount of non-hazardous waste decreased from
428.0 metric kilotons in 2021 to 381.3 metric kilotons in 2022
There was an increase in the previous year. which was largely due
to our Westnetz GmbH subsidiary and activities in Sweden. in
contrast. the amount in 2022 declined because of a few individual
changes at several E.ON recycled 67 p: ofits
non-hazardous waste. '

-E— |
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- |
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£.0N produced 162.2 metric kilotons of hazardous waste in 2022,
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investors and their portfolios. E.ON's water-related activities relate
to the following areas: the withd! | of cooling water for the
NPP operated by PEL (for more information, see “Non-Core

Busi Water Manag: at Pr Elektra® below) and the
withdrawal of fresh water by EON's water utility subsidiaries
RWW and Avacon Wasser as well as a small amount in
conjunction with our decentralized energy business. In addition,
LEW operates a number of small and medium-sized run-of-river
power plants in Germany with an installed capacity of 0.5t0 12
MW per plant. These plants accounted for about 0.02 percent of
E.ON's total power generation in 2022,

C D lized
about 21 metric kilotons more than in 2021 of which 66 percent é&':’:g:"' from Encray
was recycled. o
Million cubic meters 2022 2021 2020
[other Atmospheric Emissions® 1 Freshwater cansumgtion <1 <1 <3
Metic tons 2022 2021 2020
NOx emissi 2.6%0 1716 1420 Wate